Public Document Pack

E-mail: comsec@teignbridge.gov.uk
16 May 2022

FULL COUNCIL
A meeting of the Full Council will be held on Tuesday, 24th May, 2022 in the Council
Chamber, Forde House, Brunel Road, Newton Abbot, TQ12 4XX at 10.00 am
PHIL SHEARS
Managing Director
Membership:
Councillors Austen, Bradford, Bullivant, Clarance, Colclough, Connett, Cook, D Cox,
H Cox, Daws, Dewhirst, Eden, Evans (Vice-Chair), Foden, Goodman-Bradbury, Gribble,
Haines, Hayes, Hocking, G Hook, J Hook, Jeffery, Jeffries, Jenks, Keeling, Kerswell,
MacGregor, Morgan, Mullone, Nutley, Nuttall, Orme, Parker-Khan, Parker (Chair), Patch,
Peart, J Petherick, L Petherick, Phipps, Purser, Rollason, Russell, Swain, Taylor,
Thorne, Tume and Wrigley
Please Note:The public can view the live streaming of the meeting at Teignbridge
District Council Webcasting (public-i.tv) with the exception where there are
confidential or exempt items, which may need to be considered in the absence of the
press and public.

AGENDA
Part I
1.

Apologies for absence

2.

Election of Chair of the Council 2022/2023

3.

Election of Vice-Chair of the Council 2022/2023

1

4.

Minutes

(Pages 7 - 12)

To approve as a correct record and sign the minutes of the previous Council
meeting.
5.

Declarations of interest (if any)

6.

Announcements
Announcements only from the Chair of Council, Leader, Members of the Executive
or the Managing Director.

7.

Public Questions (if any)
Members of the public may ask questions. A maximum period of 15 minutes will be
allowed with a maximum period of three minutes per questioner. The deadline for
questions is 5pm three clear working days before the meeting for this meeting being
Wednesday 18 May 2022 at 5pm.

8.

Committee Appointment and Political Balance

(Pages 13 - 18)

In accordance with the Local Government and Housing Act 1989, the Political
Composition of the groups is as below:The 2022/2023 nominations received by Democratic Services will be reported to or
otherwise made at the AGM.

Democrat Group
Conservative Group
Independent Group
South Devon Alliance
Anti-Violence Group and Positive
Politics
Independent - No Group
Total Seats

22 Seats
12 Seats
7 Seats
3 Seats
2 Seats
1 Seat
47

RECOMMENDED that the Seat Allocation be agreed as below:-

Committee
Overview & Scrutiny
(1)
Overview & Scrutiny
(2)
Planning
Licensing &
Regulatory
Audit Scrutiny
Standards
Strata Scrutiny
Total

Total
Seats
13

Lib
Dems
6

13

Cons Inds SDA

AV
&PP
Grp

Ind –
No
Group

3

2

1

1

0

6

3

2

1

1

0

17
11

8
5

4
3

3
2

1
1

1
0

0
0

8
6
3
71

4
3
1
33

2
2
1
18

1
1
1
12

1
0
0
5

0
0
0
3

0
0
0
0

2

Not politically balanced:Name of
Committee
Procedures
Committee

Name of body
other than
ordinary
committee
Highways & Traffic
Orders Teignbridge
9.

Lib
Dems

Chair
Chair of
Council

2 plus
Group
Leader

Places

Lib
Dems

3

2

Cons

Inds

SDA

2 plus
Group
Leader

2 plus
Group
Leader

Group
Leader

Cons Inds

1

0

AV &
PP Grp

Ind
No
Grp

Group
Leader

0

SDA

AV &
PP
Grp

Ind
No
Grp

0

0

0

Levelling Up Fund Round 2 Submission and Project Delivery

(Pages 19 - 26)

10. Recommendation from Executive - Homelessness Strategy

(Pages 27 118)

11. Notices of Motion

(Pages 119 122)

Notice of Motion’s shall be referred to the appropriate Committee meeting. The
mover of the motion can outline the proposal and then it will stand adjourned. The
motion may be debated to assist debate later if agreed by two-thirds of Council
Members.
Notice of Motion 1
The following motion on the Ocean and Coastal Recovery Declaration (see attached
sheet) has been presented by Cllr J Hook and supported by Cllrs H Cox, Dewhirst,
G Hook, Foden, Jenks, Nuttall, Nutley Parker Rollason, Swain and Wirgley
This Council pledges to:
1 - Report to Full Council within 6 months on the actions and projects that will begin
an ocean recovery in Teignbridge
2 - Embed ocean recovery in all strategic decisions, budgets and approaches to
decisions by the Council (particularly in planning, regeneration, skills and economic
policy), aligning with climate and ecological emergency plans.
3 Ensure that the Local Plan supports ocean recovery, and the health of our coastal
environments both naturally and socio-economically.
4 Work with partners locally and nationally to deliver increased sustainability in local
marine industries and support investment in the development of a sustainable and
equitable blue economy, including the local fishing industry and the vital work of

3

relevant partners, including Devon & Severn IFCA, the Environment Agency and
Marine Management Organisation.
5 Create an online portal of the Council website to update on ocean recovery
progress, signpost to ocean literacy development opportunities, and marine
citizenship pledges.
6 Write to South West Water to request details of their urgent and revised plans to
eradicate the practice of sewage discharges to rivers and coastal waters around
Teignbridge.
7 Work where possible with South West Water, the Environment Agency,
Catchment and Coastal Partnerships, developers and other agencies to combat
threats to the quality of water being discharged into the rivers and coastal waters
around Teignbridge.
8 Call on government to:
a. Set meaningful targets and deadlines for water companies to end sewage
discharges and introduce a Sewage Tax on water companies’ profits to fund the
clean-up of waterways.
b. Reduce the number of licences given to water companies permitting them
to discharge sewage into rivers.
c. Strengthen Ofwat’s powers to monitor the annual financial plans and
reports of the water companies in order to compel them to achieve a fair and
transparent balance between consumer prices, shareholder dividend, staff
remuneration and ongoing long-term investment in storm water infrastructure.
d. Add local environmental groups onto water companies’ boards.
e. Promote a public benefit company model for water companies, so that
particular economic and environmental policy objectives must be considered
explicitly in the running of the companies.
f. Work with local authorities to ensure water companies protect our rivers
and seas by:
i. Water companies being required to invest upfront in sewerage
infrastructure to reflect environmental objectives in Local Plans and planning
applications.
ii. Identify powers of local authorities under the statutory duty to promote
wellbeing of the area and provide councils with the funding to meet this duty.
iii. Cease making cuts to Environment Agency funding and ensure that it has
enough staff to significantly improve its monitoring of the threats of inadequate
storm-water infrastructure and pollution from sewage and agricultural nitrates.
9 Further call on the Government to put the ocean into net recovery by 2030 by:
a. Ensuring Inshore Fisheries and Conservation Authorities have the
resources they need to effectively research and monitor our growing number of
marine protected areas, and to set and enforce appropriate fishing levels that
support local economies and deliver environmental sustainability.
b. Incorporating social scientific evidence and lived experience to improve
community co- production of policy and develop more effective and equitable

4

solutions.
c. Listening to marine scientific advice to update the Marine Policy Statement
and produce a national Ocean Recovery Strategy which will:
i
i. Enable the recovery of marine ecosystems rather than managing degraded
or altered habitats in their reduced state.
ii
ii. Consider levelling up, marine conservation, energy, industrial growth, flood
and coastal erosion risk management, climate adaptation and fisheries policy
holistically rather than as competing interests.
iii
iii. Develop a smarter approach to managing the health of the entire ocean
that moves beyond Marine Protected Areas and enables links to be made across
sectors towards sustainability.
iv
iv. Establish improved processes for understanding the benefits from ocean
management, leaving no doubt the links between this and human lives, livelihoods,
and wellbeing.
a.
d. Recognising the value of, and contribute resourcing towards, multi-agency
Integrated Coastal Management Partnerships which operate at the local geographic
level and are able to respond to issues and opportunities which effect the local
maritime environment and adjacent communities.
12. Councillor Questions
Members of the Council may ask questions of the Council subject to procedural
rules.
If you would like this information in another format, please telephone 01626 361101 or
e-mail info@teignbridge.gov.uk

5

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4

FULL COUNCIL
28 APRIL 2022
Present:
Councillors Austen, Bradford, Bullivant, Clarance, Colclough, Connett, Cook, D Cox,
H Cox, Daws, Dewhirst, Eden, Evans (Vice-Chair), Goodman-Bradbury, Gribble,
Haines, G Hook, J Hook, Jeffery, Jenks, Keeling, MacGregor, Morgan, Mullone,
Nutley, Nuttall, Orme, Parker-Khan, Patch, Peart, Phipps, Purser, Rollason, Russell,
Swain, Taylor, Thorne, Tume and Wrigley
Apologies:
Councillors Foden, Hayes, Hocking, Jeffries, Kerswell, Parker, J Petherick and
L Petherick
Officers in Attendance:
Neil Blaney, Head of Place & Commercial Services
Tom Butcher, Senior Estates & Development Surveyor
Trish Corns, Democratic Services Officer
Martin Flitcroft, Chief Finance Officer & Head of Corporate Services
Christopher Morgan, Trainee Democratic Services Officer
Fergus Pate, Principal Delivery Officer
Sarah Selway, Democratic Services Team Leader & Deputy Monitoring Officer
Phil Shears, Managing Director

25.

MINUTES
It was proposed by the Leader, seconded by the Executive Member for
Recycling, Household Waste and Environmental Health that the minutes be
approved.
An amendment was proposed by Cllr Patch that item 2 the minutes of the
previous meeting be amended to record that he had raised a point of order
regarding the minutes of the meeting of 30 January 2022 concerning a breach of
the constitution. This was seconded by Cllr Daws put to the vote and lost.
A recorded vote was asked for by at least five Members under Procedure Rule
4.13.5.
Recorded vote under Procedure Rule 4.13.5
For: Cllrs Bradford, Daws, Eden, MacGregor, Mullone, Orme and Patch
(7 members)

7

Against: Cllrs Austen, Bullivant, Clarance, Colclough, Connett, D Cox, H Cox,
Dewhirst, Evans (Vice-Chair), Goodman-Bradbury, Gribble, Jeffery, Keeling,
Nutley, Peart, Phipps, Rollason, Russell, Swain, Taylor, Thorne, and Wrigley
(22 members)
Abstain: Cllrs Haines, G Hook, J Hook, Jenks, Morgan, Nuttall, Parker-Khan,
Purser and Tume
(9 members)
Not voted: Cllr Cook
(1 member)
Absent: Cllrs Foden, Hayes, Hocking, Jefferies, Kerswell, J Petherick, L
Petherick and Parker
(8 members)
The amendment was lost.
The substantive motion was put to the vote and it was:RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting on 22 February 2022 be approved
and signed as a correct record by the Chair.
26.

CHAIR OF MEETING
As the Chair had given there apologises Cllr Evans the Vice-Chair took the
Chair.

27.

ANNOUNCEMENTS
The Chair stated that agenda item 7 would be taken before agenda item 5 and
agenda items 15 to 17 would be taken before agenda item 14.

28.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Cllrs Clarance, D Cox, Eden, Macgregor, Orme and Russell declared an interest
in respect of minute no.31 as they were patients at Teignmouth surgeries.
Cllr Patch declared in interest in relation to minute no.25 as he was named in the
minutes of the previous meeting and in respect of minute no.34 as he was
referred to in the member’s questions.

29.

PUBLIC QUESTION
Public question and response attached to agenda.
See the live stream – Full Council - Thursday, 28th April 2022 at 10:00am Teignbridge District Council Webcasting (public-i.tv)

8

30.

LEVELLING UP WHITE PAPER
The Managing Director presented the report to ensure that Members were aware
of the key provisions of the ‘Levelling Up’ White Paper, for the Council to
endorse participation in the development of a ‘County Deal’ proposal for Devon
and that the Council was prepared for the introduction of the UK Shared
Prosperity Fund.
Mr Phill Adams the Devon County Council Devolution Lead was in attendance.
Members were advised that on 14 April 2022 the Government announced £1.6
million of Shared Prosperity Fund of which Teignbridge District Council was the
responsible authority. An Investment Plan would need to be submitted by August
2022. Due to the tight timescales and the requirement to consult with partners it
was recommended that an officer group be set up overseen by the Executive
Member for Homes & Communities, the Executive Member for Corporate
Services and the two Overview and Scrutiny Committee Chairs. The Investment
Plan would be considered by Full Council in July 2022. Members would receive
regular updates via the Members Newsletter.
The Leader proposed the recommendation be approved with the additional
recommendation, this was seconded by the Executive Member for Recycling,
Household Waste & Environmental Health and carried.
RESOLVED that:-

31.

(1)

The importance of influencing a County deal for the Devon, Plymouth and
Torbay area and the desire to make decision making more local be
acknowledged;

(2)

The potential list of programmes and investments set out in Section 8 of
this report that might be included within the County deal were considered;
and

(3)

Further reports on the County deal be advised as it progresses and on the
development of an Investment Plan in relation to the Shared Prosperity
Fund;

(4)

An officer group be set up to put together the Investment Plan this group
would be overseen by the Executive Member for Homes and Communities,
the Executive Member for Corporate Services and the two Overview and
Scrutiny Committee Chairs.

FUNDING FOR JETTY MARSH LINK ROAD NEWTON ABBOT
The Executive Member for Planning proposed the recommendation be
approved, this was seconded by the Leader.

9

Following debate it was proposed by Cllr Gribble and second by Cllr Bullivant
that the motion be put to the vote.
The recommendation was carried.
RESOLVED that:(1)

A contribution of £600,000 towards the new link road between Newton
Abbot Hospital (West Golds Way) and the A382 be approved; and

(2)

Delegated authority be given to the Head of Place and Commercial
Services to complete a funding agreement with Devon County Council
associated with the contribution and take such other actions as may be
necessary to make the payment.

A recorded vote was asked for by at least five Members under Procedure Rule
4.13.5.
Recorded vote under Procedure Rule 4.13.5
For: Cllrs Austen, Bullivant, Clarance, Colclough, Connett, D Cox, H Cox,
Dewhirst, Evans, Goodman-Bradbury, Gribble, Haines, G Hook, J Hook, Jeffery,
Jenks, Keeling, Morgan, Nutley, Nuttall, Parker-Khan, Peart, Phipps, Purser,
Rollason, Russell, Swain, Taylor, Thorne, Tume, and Wrigley
(31 members)
Against: Cllrs Daws, Eden, Mullone and Orme,
(4 members)
Abstain; Cllrs Bradford, MacGregor and Patch
(3 members)
Not voted: Cllr Cook
(1 member)
Absent: Cllrs Foden, Hayes, Hocking, Jefferies, Kerswell, Parker, J Petherick
and L Petherick (8 members)
32.

TEIGNMOUTH, BRUNSWICK STREET
The Executive Member for Corporate Services introduced the item.
The Chair proposed, seconded by Cllr Macgregor that because of the financially
sensitive information to be discussed the Council go into Part II session and
exclude the press and public. This was carried.
RESOLVED that under Section 100 (A) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972
that the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the discussion of the
financial sensitive information on the grounds that it involved the likely disclosure
of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of part 1 of schedule 12 A of the
Act.

10

The Executive Member for Corporate Services proposed, seconded by Cllr
Parker-Khan that the meeting return to Part I with press and public present. This
was carried and the meeting resumed in Part I.
The Executive Member for Corporate Services proposed the recommendation,
this was seconded by Cllr Russell.
Cllr Clarance proposed an amendment that the final decision be deferred until
such time as the Council had an answer regarding what alternative options the
National Health Service would put forward if the Council chose not to sell the
land to them. This was seconded by Cllr Patch, put to the vote and lost.
Recorded vote under Procedure Rule 4.13.5
For: Cllrs Bradford, Clarance, Daws, Eden, Jeffery, Mullone, Patch, Phipps and
Tume
(9 members)
Against: Cllrs Austen, Bullivant, Colclough, Connett, D Cox, H Cox, Dewhirst,
Goodman-Bradbury, Haines, G Hook, J Hook, Jenks, Keeling, Macgregor,
Morgan, Nutley, Nuttall, Orme, Parker-Khan, Peart, Purser, Rollason, Russell,
Swain, Taylor, Wrigley and Evans.
(27 Members)
Abstention: Cllr Gribble (1 member)
Note Voted: Cllr Cook (1 member)
Absent: Cllrs Foden, Hayes, Hocking, Jefferies, Kerswell, Parker, J Petherick, L
Petherick and Thorne, (9 members)
The substantive motion was put to the vote and it was:RESOLVED that:(1)

The sale of land to at Brunswick Street, as shown edged red in appendix
1 to Torbay and South Devon NHS Trust be approved;

(2)

The capital expenditure for the creation of a new car park at the junction
of George Street and Brunswick Street, Teignmouth be approved. As
illustrated edged in green in appendix 1; and

(3)

Delegated authority be given to the Head of Place and Commercial
Services in consultation with the Head of Legal Services and Portfolio
Holder for Corporate Resources to approve the final sale terms and take
such decisions necessary to carry out the above decisions.

A recorded vote was asked for by at least five Members under Procedure Rule
4.13.5.

11

Recorded vote under Procedure Rule 4.13.5
For: Cllrs Austen, Bullivant, Colclough, Connett, D Cox, H Cox, Dewhirst, Eden,
Goodman-Bradbury, Haines, G Hook, J Hook, Jenks, Keeling, Macgregor,
Morgan, Nutley, Nuttall, Orme, Parker-Khan, Peart, Purser, Rollason, Swain,
Taylor, Wrigley and Evans
(28 Members)
Against: Cllrs Bradford, Clarance, Phipps
(3 members)
Abstain: Cllrs Daws, Gribble, Jeffery, Mullone, Patch, and Tume
(6 members)
No vote: Cllr Cook
(1 member)
Absent: Cllrs Foden, Hayes, Hocking, Jefferies, Kerswell, Parker, J Petherick, L
Petherick and Thorne
(9 members)
33.

NOTICE OF MOTION
In the absence of Cllr Foden, the Executive Member for Homes & Communities
presented the Notice of Motion regarding bus routes and service in the District.
The motion was referred to Executive.

34.

FOR INFORMATION - URGENT DECISION - DECARBONISATION
WORKS
Noted.

35.

COUNCILLOR QUESTIONS
Member questions and responses attached to agenda.
See the live stream – Full Council - Thursday, 28th April 2022 at 10:00am Teignbridge District Council Webcasting (public-i.tv)
The meeting started at 10.00 am and finished at 1.45 pm.

Chair

12

Agenda Item 8

Annual Council
Committee Seat Allocations for 2022-2023

Permitted allocation to political groups

Committee
Overview & Scrutiny (1)
Overview & Scrutiny (2)
Planning
Licensing & Regulatory
Audit Scrutiny
Standards
Strata Scrutiny
Total

Total
Seats

Lib
Dems

Cons

Inds

13
13
17
11
8
6
3
71

6
6
8
5
4
3
1
33

3
3
4
3
2
2
1
18

2
2
3
2
1
1
1
12

SDA AV
&
PPG
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
0
1
0
0
0
0
0
5
3

Group nominations:

Overview and Scrutiny 1 (13 Seats)
Liberal
Democrats

Conservatives Independents

SDA Group

AV

(3 Seats)

(1 Seat)

& PPG

(2 Seats)

(6 Seats)

(1 Seats)

1. Cllr H Cox

1.Cllr Clarance

1. Cllr Hocking

2.Cllr Jenks

2. Cllr ParkerKhan

2. Cllr Orme

3. Cllr D Cox

3. Cllr Thorne

4. Cllr Foden
5. Cllr
Rollason
6. Cllr Parker

13

1. Cllr Mullone

1.Macgregor

Overview and Scrutiny 2 (13 Seats)
Liberal
Democrats

Conservatives Independents

SDA Group

AV & PPG

(3 Seats)

(2 Seats)

(1 Seat)

(1 Seats)

1. Cllr Swain

1. Cllr Bullivant

1.Cllr Austen

1.Cllr Daws

1.Cllr Eden

2. Cllr D Cox

2. Cllr Gribble

2. Cllr L
Petherick

3. Cllr Hayes

3. Cllr Tume

(6 Seats)

4. Cllr G
Hook
5. Cllr
Morgan
6. Cllr Nuttall

Planning Committee – 17 Seats
Liberal
Democrats

Conservatives Independents

SDA Group

AV & PPG

(4 Seats)

(3 Seats)

(1 Seat)

(1 Seat)

1. Cllr Peart

1. Cllr Haines

1.Cllr Bradford

1.Cllr Macgregor

(8 Seats)
1. Cllr
GoodmanBradbury

14

2. Cllr H Cox

2. Cllr Clarance

2. Cllr
Colclough

3. Cllr Hayes

3. Cllr Jeffery

3. Cllr J
Petherick

4. Cllr J Hook

4. Cllr Kerswell

5. Cllr Nuttall

6. Cllr Nutley
7. Cllr Parker
8.
Substitutes
Cllr Dewhirst

Cllr Russell

Cllr Austen

Cllr Jeffries

Cllr Phipps

Cllr Hocking

Cllr Daws

Licensing and Regulatory (11 Seats)
Liberal
Democrats

Conservatives Independents

SDA Group

AV & PPG

(3 Seats)

(2 Seats)

(1 Seat)

(0 Seats)

1.Cllr D Cox

1.Cllr Clarance

1.Cllr Austen

1.Cllr Bradford

2. Cllr Hayes

2.Cllr Kerswell

2. Cllr J
Petherick

3. Cllr Evans

3.Cllr Russell

(5 Seats)

4.Cllr
Rollason
5. Cllr Linda
GoodmanBradbury

15

Audit Scrutiny (8 Seats)
Liberal
Democrats

Conservatives

Independents

SDA Group

AV & PPG

(2 Seats)

(1 Seats)

(1 Seat)

(0 Seats)

1. Cllr Morgan

1. Cllr Clarance

1.Cllr
Colclough

2.

2.Cllr Thorne

(4 Seats)

Cllr Rollason
3.Cllr
GoodmanBradbury
4.Cllr H Cox

16

1. Cllr Mullone

Standards (6 Seats)
Liberal
Democrats

Conservatives Independents

SDA Group

AV & PPG

(2 Seats)

(1 Seats)

(0 Seats)

(0 Seats)

1. Cllr Nutley

1. Cllr Bullivant

1. Cllr L
Petherick

2.Cllr Swain

2. Cllr Peart

(3 Seats)

3.Cllr Evans

Strata Scrutiny (3 Seats)
Liberal
Democrats

Conservatives Independents

SDA Group

AV & PPG

(1 Seats)

(1 Seats)

(0 Seats)

(0 Seats)

1.Cllr Clarance

1. J Petherick

(1 Seats)
1.Cllr Nuttall

Not politically balanced:-

Procedures (12 Seats)
(Chair of Council to be Chair of Committee)
All group leaders. 2 Members from each group over 10% of all Councillors
Liberal
Democrats

Conservative Independents
s

SDA Group

AV & PPG

1 Cllr Connett

1.Cllr
Bullivant

1. Cllr Mullone

1.Macgregor

2. Cllr D Cox

2. Cllr Parker- 2.Cllr L
Khan
Petherick

1. Cllr Haines

17

3. Cllr H Cox

3.Cllr Thorne

3.Cllr L
Petherick

4. Cllr Parker
Chair - Chair of the Council

Highways & Traffic Orders Teignbridge (3 Seats)
Liberal
Democrats

Conservatives

1. Cllr G Hook

1. Cllr Russell

Independents

2. Cllr Swain

18

SDA Group

AV & PPG

Agenda Item 9

Teignbridge District Council
Council
24 May 2022
Part 1

Levelling Up Fund Round 2
Purpose of Report
To approve the preparation of a bid for funding through the Levelling Up Fund; a local
financial contribution towards the scheme; and implementation of the project if the bid is
successful.

Recommendation(s)
The Committee RESOLVES to:
(1) Approve the preparation and submission of a Levelling Up Fund Round 2 bid for
funding to deliver a strategic cycle route between Newton Abbot and Torbay.
(2) Approve a contribution of up to £500,000 towards the scheme from our capital
programme.
(3) Delegate authority to the Head of Place and Commercial services, in consultation
with the Executive Member for Economy and Jobs, and the Executive Member
for Planning, to:
a) Confirm the final funding bid and submit it to the Government;
b) Enter into all necessary legal agreements associated with the scheme; and
c) Oversee implementation of the project.

Financial Implications
Please see Section 5.1 - £500,000 to be contributed from the existing provision in
the capital programme via external funding/CIL
Martin Flitcroft, Chief Finance Officer and Head of Corporate Services
Email: martin.flicroft@teignbridge.gov.uk

Legal Implications
No further advice provided but legal implications are addressed in Section 5.4

Risk Assessment
The main risks are described from Section 5.9.

Teignbridge Full Council
24 May 2022

19

Fergus Pate, Principal Delivery Officer
Email: fergus.pate@teignbridge.gov.uk

Environmental/ Climate Change Implications
Environmental and climate change implications are addressed from Section 5.13
Fergus Pate, Principal Delivery Officer
Email: fergus.pate@teignbridge.gov.uk

Report Author
Fergus Pate, Principal Delivery Officer
Email: fergus.pate@teignbridge.gov.uk

Executive Members
Executive Member for Economy and Jobs, Nina Jeffries
Executive Member for Planning, Cllr Gary Taylor

Appendices
Appendix 1 – Map indicating main scheme elements.

Background Papers
Devon County Council Cabinet report: Bid into Government Levelling Up Fund: Round 2
Levelling Up Fund Round 2 Prospectus
Heart of Teignbridge Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan
Torbay Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan
Teignbridge Capital Programme

1. Introduction
1.1

The Department for Transport, Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government
and the Treasury are investing in local infrastructure through the £4.8 Billion Levelling Up
Fund. Approximately £1.7 Billion of the Fund was allocated in October 2021. Round 2 has
now been announced and the deadline for submissions is 6 July 2022.

1.2

Nationally, three tiers of levelling up priority have been identified and the Teignbridge area
has been assigned the lowest priority level (category three). Category one proposals are
more likely to be successful but category two and three bids will still be considered for
funding if they are shown to be deliverable, value for money and a good strategic fit.

1.3

Support from the local Member of Parliament is required for schemes to succeed and MPs
are only allowed to prioritise one bid.

1.4

Funding must be deployed by the end of March 2025 and it is important for bids to
demonstrate that those timescales can be met. A 10 per cent local contribution is also
required and bids are generally capped at a value of £20 million.
Teignbridge Full Council
24 May 2022

20

1.5

Teignbridge’s Council Strategy identifies sustainable travel investments as a key priority,
particularly through the Moving up a Gear super project. It is proposed to submit a Levelling
Up Fund bid to deliver a strategic cycle route between Newton Abbot and Torbay, as well as
links to the new neighbourhood at Wolborough.

2. Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plans
2.1

Through the Newton Abbot and Kingsteignton Garden Community Programme, Teignbridge
worked closely with Devon County Council to prepare a Local Cycling and Walking
Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP) for the Heart of Teignbridge. This was the first such strategy to
be prepared across the Devon County Council area. According to government guidance,
putting these strategies in place helps authorities to make a strong case for future
investment.

2.2

The LCWIP was endorsed by Teignbridge Highways and Traffic Orders Committee on 3
March 2022 and explains that Torbay is the top destination for commuters travelling from
Newton Abbot. Around 10 per cent more people commute to Torbay than Exeter. Similarly
the greatest number of commuters travelling to Newton Abbot originate from Torbay.

2.3

Following extensive public consultation, the LCWIP prioritised strategic cycling
improvements along the Torquay Road through Kingskerswell for investment. It also
identified important links to the new development at Wolbrorough, which would involve
construction of a new pedestrian and cycle bridge over the railway at Langford Bridge before
connecting to the existing high quality cycle route along Kingskerswell Road.

2.4

Torbay Council (Levelling Up Fund category one) has also introduced an LCWIP for the bay
and similarly identified the Torquay Road corridor as a priority for investment, as well as
onward links to Torbay Hospital through Edginswell and past the planned new railway
station.

3. Proposed Scheme
3.1

The strategic cycleway improvements will comprise three main elements:
a) Segregated route between Newton Abbot and Edginswell
b) Onward connection between Edginswell and Torbay Hospital
c) Link between Kingskerswell and Wolborough development, including a new rail bridge.

3.2

An indicative map is available at Appendix 1. It is recommended to delegate decisions
associated with defining the precise form of the submission to the Head of Place and
Commercial Services, in consultation with the Executive Members for Planning, and
Economy and Jobs. These decisions will be subject to technical and high level design work
and input from prospective delivery partners, including Devon County Council and Torbay
Council.

3.3

The majority of the route would be within existing highway land and would not require
planning permission. However, this position will be reviewed in more detail and the County
Council have indicated that they would seek to secure necessary consents by the end of the
year.

4. Local and stakeholder support

Teignbridge Full Council
24 May 2022

21

4.1

With almost 400 survey responses, LCWIP consultation confirmed at least 70% support for
the main elements of the proposed scheme. This included the cycleway through
Kingskerswell, which was proposed to take the form of a two-way link on the west side of the
Torquay Road. However, some concerns about this element of the scheme were raised as
part of the consultation, particularly in relation to safety. These matters will need to be
addressed through the bid preparation process.

4.2

Through a Devon County Council Cabinet decision on 11 May 2022, Devon County Council
has already indicated support for the overall project and a willingness to deliver upgrades
within the County Council’s administrative boundary.

4.3

For reasons of good place making, the scheme would also include improvements outside of
Teignbridge and Devon’s administrative area, extending into Torbay. Whilst initial informal
discussions have indicated that Torbay Council would support delivery of the project, formal
confirmation of this is awaited. The alternative would be to take the upgraded route only as
far as the administrative boundary at Edginswell.

4.4

A briefing with Anne Marie Morris as MP for Newton Abbot has been arranged. At the time
of publishing this committee agenda the meeting had not taken place. A further update will
be provided at the Full Council meeting.

5. Implications, Risk Management and Climate Change Impact
Financial
5.1

A 10 per cent local contribution is required. Based on a project cost estimate of £15.4
million, £1.54 million would be needed from the local area. Devon County Council has
confirmed that it would meet two thirds of these costs and pay approximately £1.1 million.
There is an existing provision in Teignbridge’s Capital Programme for walking and cycling
improvements that would be sufficient to make up the remaining local contribution.

5.2

At this stage we are working with cost estimates that could change over the course of bid
preparation. It is therefore recommended to approve a contribution of up to £500,000 over
the period to March 2025. This approach will build in flexibility to provide one third of the
local funding, even if costs increased by a small proportion.

5.3

Whilst Community Infrastructure Levy funding is available, it should be noted that committing
this budget would impinge on our short-term ability to fund other walking and cycling
priorities such as the Teign Estuary Kingsteignton to Teignmouth cycle link. However, there
are still matters to address with that scheme before it can be brought forward, by which time
additional funding is expected to be available from developer contributions.

Legal
5.4

Various agreements will need to be completed between Teignbridge Council, Devon County
Council, Government departments and, potentially, Torbay Council. Amongst them are likely
to include funding and delivery agreements.

5.5

The Council has recent experience of completing such agreements.

5.6

Works to implement the scheme will also need to be procured but it is expected that this will
be transport authority led.
Equality

Teignbridge Full Council
24 May 2022

22

5.7

The decision in hand is about submitting a bid to deliver a scheme that has already been
consulted on and endorsed through existing strategies. As the recommendation is
consistent with existing approved strategies, it is not considered that there have been
material changes that would lead to different equality impact assessment conclusions. No
further equality impact assessment is required at this stage.

5.8

It is also worth noting that, as the main delivery body for the project, the County Council
Cabinet report confirmed that once more detailed project development work has been
undertaken, ‘Successful schemes will be subject to a further Cabinet report and the inclusion
of an Impact Assessment’.
Risks
a) Teignbridge’s Category 3 Levelling Up Status

5.9

Teignbridge’s Category 3 status makes it less likely that the funding bid will be successful.
Despite recent analysis showing that Newton Abbot, Teignmouth and Dawlish have been
amongst the hardest economically hit towns across Devon, our Levelling Up Fund status has
not changed from round 1.

5.10 Only 7 per cent of successful bids in round 1 were from category 3. In response to this
challenge:
The total value of the proposal has been set much lower than the £20 million
threshold.
The scheme that has been identified is considered to be deliverable, already benefits
from strategic and local support and initial design work has been undertaken.
It is intended to draw together existing information, evidence and analysis in order to
produce a Strategic Outline Business Case for the project in support of our bid,
further demonstrating to the Government that the project is credible and deliverable.
This approach goes beyond the fund’s bidding requirements but should help to
maximise our chances of success.
Whilst the benefit cost ratio (a key metric when bids such as this are being assessed)
of the project has yet to be reviewed in detail, it is expected to compete favourably.
The proposed scheme would link into a Category 1 area, benefitting staff, residents
and visitors to the Teignbridge and Torbay area.
b) Project Delivery
5.11 The proposed scheme will involve coordination across local authority boundaries. Devon
County Council has confirmed a willingness to deliver elements within Teignbridge, including
more complex aspects like the Langford Bridge rail crossing. However, it is likely that
Torbay Council would need to manage aspects of the scheme within their administrative
area.
5.12 Officers are liaising to confirm capacity to undertake this work and a project board structure
will be put in place to oversee delivery if the scheme funding bid is successful.

Teignbridge Full Council
24 May 2022

23

Environmental / Climate Change Impact
5.13 The proposed strategic cycle link has strong environmental credentials. It will make better
use of existing infrastructure and support increased cycling along one of Teignbridge’s most
important commuter corridors. This will both encourage more healthy lifestyles, easier
access to employment and low carbon, low cost transport choices.
5.14 Teignbridge Council is already supporting other key transport upgrades across the district
where carbon management plan arrangements are being put in place. Similar arrangements
will be sought for this project as well.

6. Alternative Options
Do Nothing
6.1

Teignbridge’s Category 3 Levelling Up Fund Status reduces the likelihood that the proposed
bid will be successful. The Council is already working on a number of important initiatives
and there may be a case for focussing our resources on those projects instead.

6.2

However, our main role with this scheme would be in assembling the bid and much of the
information needed to do so already exists. It would be for others to lead delivery of the
project and the resource implications are therefore considered to be limited.

6.3

Additionally, there is a strong case for the proposed scheme and, even if it does not
succeed, making the submission will raise the profile of this project and associated priorities
like the Kingsteignton to Teignmouth section of the Teign Estuary Trail

Submit an alternative project
6.4

The Levelling Up Fund prospectus encourages bids focussed on (i) transport investment; (ii)
regeneration and town centre investment; and (iii) cultural investment. Teignbridge is
already taking forward significant town centre and cultural investments through the Future
High Street Fund and it is considered less likely that further proposals within these themes
would succeed.

6.5

There are no other well-developed projects that would be able to meet the March 2025
timescales.

6.6

Consideration has been given to submitting the Kingsteignton to Teignmouth Teign Estuary
Trail for investment. Clearly this is a priority project and one that benefits from significant
public support. Whilst this scheme now has planning permission, there remain further
matters that need to be addressed before it can be delivered. This isn’t considered feasible
within the permitted time.

7. Conclusion
7.1

Bringing forward the Newton Abbot to Torbay strategic cycle route bid is a priority that
reflects existing local strategies. The scheme represents Teignbridge’s best opportunity to
harness the fund and secure long-lasting benefits for people living, visiting and working in
the area.

Teignbridge Full Council
24 May 2022

24

Appendix 1 – Map Indicating Main Scheme Elements

Teignbridge Full Council
24 May 2022

25

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10

Teignbridge District Council
Committee name: Full Council
Meeting date: 24th May 2022
Part I

Report Title:
Teignbridge Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy 2022-2027

Purpose of Report
To request that Full Council approves and adopts the Homelessness and Rough
Sleeping Strategy 2022-2027, noting the amendments resulting from consultation.

Recommendation(s)
That Full Council approves and adopts the Teignbridge Homelessness and Rough
Sleeping Strategy 2022-2027, noting the feedback that has been provided via our 5
consultation exercises, which has enabled us to refine and improve our final version
of the strategy which we plan to publish in July of 2022.

Financial Implications
Martin Flitcroft, Chief Financial Officer and Head of Corporate Services
Email: martin.flitcroft@teignbridge.gov.uk
As and when budget is required for the completion of any project derived from the
Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy, or internal staffing resources need to
be committed, a business case will be made and senior leadership and/ or
democratic approval will be sought in line with our corporate and constitutional
requirements.

Legal Implications
The Council as a Local Housing Authority has a statutory obligation to review its
Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy every 5 years. Failure to undertake the
review by the Council will amount to a breach of its statutory duty.

Paul Woodhead, Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer
Email: paul.woodhead@teignbridge.gov.uk

Full Council
24th May 2022

27

Risk Assessment
For any future projects derived from the Homelessness and Rough Sleeping
Strategy, where required, the relevant project lead will assess risks and complete a
risk register outlining any potential risks and associated mitigations.

Tony Mansour, Housing Needs Lead
Email: tony.mansour@teignbridge.gov.uk

Environmental/ Climate Change Implications
There are no direct environmental or climate change implications associated with the
Draft Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy, however any future projects or
interventions derived from the strategy will be developed with environmental and
climate change considerations in mind and, where required, with input from our
Climate Change Officer.
Will Elliott, Climate Change Officer
Email: will.elliott@teignbridge.gov.uk

Report Author
Tony Mansour, Housing Needs Lead
tony.mansour@teignbridge.gov.uk

Executive Member
Cllr Martin Wrigley: martin.wrigley@teignbridge.gov.uk

Appendices/Background Papers
Appendix 1 Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy 2022-2027
Appendix 2 The Teignbridge Homelessness Review 2021
Appendix 3 Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy Consultation Report
Appendix 4 Equality Impact Assessment for the Homelessness and Rough Sleeping
Strategy 2022-2027.
1.

Introduction

1.1

The Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy sits beneath the Council
Strategy, The Local Plan and the Housing Strategy. Local Authorities are
legally obliged under the Homelessness Act 2002 (as amended) to update
their Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy every five years, and to

Full Council
24th May 2022

28

provide a comprehensive review of homelessness within their area. Following
member approval, the strategy will be published in July of 2022 and will run
until 2027.
1.2

Consultation on the draft Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy was
undertaken in December of 2021, January 2022 and February of 2022. A
report detailing the consultation methodology, outcomes and resulting
amendments to the strategy is attached. Please see appendix 3.

1.3

Following member approval of the Homelessness and Rough Sleeping
Strategy, an action plan will be developed prioritising key projects designed to
address and reduce levels of homelessness within the district. This action
plan will run for eighteen months, and will be the first of three to be produced
through the lifetime of the strategy. Key projects and actions derived from this
strategy will be reviewed and reported on a quarterly basis via our Council
Strategy and Housing Strategy Report.

1.4

Progress against the key aims and themes of our strategy will also be
reported to representatives of key statutory and community and voluntary
sector agencies via a Homelessness Forum which will be convened on a biannual basis.

1.5

A detailed Equality Impact Assessment for the strategy has been developed.
Please see appendix 4.

2.

Report Detail

2.1

The Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy sets out what the council
and its partners will be doing over the next five years to address and reduce
levels of homelessness in the district. The approach we plan to take is divided
into three core principles and three strategic priorities, namely:
Core Principles




Working In Partnership
Using Data Effectively
Putting the Client First
Strategic Priorities




Prevention
Intervention
Sustainment and Recovery

2.2

Consultation

2.2.1

Consultation on our Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy was
undertaken using the following 5 methods:

Full Council
24th May 2022

29



A workshop conducted with local representatives of the community and
voluntary sector in Teignbridge



An open formal consultation undertaken between 2 nd December 2021 and 4th
January 2022.



Feedback provided by staff working in the field of Housing and Homelessness
at Teignbridge Council



Focused interviews with the leads of key agencies including those supporting
young people and commissioners of substance misuse services.



Interviews with people with lived experience of homelessness in Teignbridge.

2.2.2

As a result of the consultation exercises listed above we have made the
following improvements to our strategy:



In relation to the establishment of a Homelessness Forum, meetings should
include a combination of developing projects and sharing of relevant
information from all parties.



Developing mechanisms for capturing the voices of people with lived
experience of homelessness should draw on local best practice examples
such as the co-designing of services by Young Devon.



We will include more specific reference to mental health services and the new
Community Mental Health Framework.



We will include a commitment to looking at the relationship between mental
health crisis and debt.



We will include specific reference to awareness raising in relation to
homelessness and homelessness prevention, for example outreach/ visiting
schools and undertaking workshops around housing options.



We will commit to the promotion and utilisation of befriending services.



We will commit to promoting and utilising apprenticeship schemes as a route
into employment, particularly for young people.



We will further explore the potential for including organisations within the
private and social enterprise sectors into our wider homelessness partnership.
We agree that this could have a positive financial and social impact and could
benefit those experiencing homelessness.

Full Council
24th May 2022

30



We will be more explicit in terms of our commitment to proactively use data in
order to provide tangible benefits for service users.



We will commit to investigating the feasibility of an emergency
accommodation and assessment centre in Teignbridge for young people.



We will promote closer collaboration between Social care and Housing for
cases of ‘intentional homelessness’.



We will commit to Housing and Substance Misuse Services working
collaboratively to investigate the potential for rapid prescribing for people
experiencing street homelessness, and for those people recently
accommodated from a position of street homelessness.



Moves between units of accommodation can be disruptive for people engaged
with treatment services. It would be helpful for this to be acknowledged within
the strategy.



An approach based on harm reduction and harm minimisation should be
adopted prior to services users being fully engaged in drug and alcohol
treatments.

3.

Implications, Risk Management and Climate Change Impact

3.1

Financial
As and when budget is required for the completion of any project derived from
the Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy, or internal staffing
resources need to be committed, a business case will be made and senior
leadership and/ or democratic approval will be sought in line with our
corporate and constitutional requirements.

3.2

Legal
Housing authorities are required by legislation (Homelessness Act 2002 and
the Homelessness Reduction Act 2017) to carry out a periodic review of
homelessness in their area and to update their Homelessness and Rough
Sleeping Strategy every five years. The purpose of the review is to determine
the extent to which the population in the district is homeless or at risk of
becoming homeless, assess the likely extent in the future, identify what is
currently being done and by whom, and identify what resources are available
to prevent and tackle homelessness.

Full Council
24th May 2022

31

Local housing authorities should use this understanding of homelessness in
their area to inform their Homelessness Strategy and they are obliged by
legislation to involve partners in this process.
3.3

Risks
For any future projects derived from the Homelessness and Rough Sleeping
Strategy, where required, the relevant project lead will assess risks and
complete a risk register outlining any potential risks and associated
mitigations.

3.4

Environmental/Climate Change Impact
For any future projects derived from the Homelessness and Rough Sleeping
Strategy, where required, the relevant project lead will assess risks and
complete a risk register outlining any potential risks and associated mitigations.

4.

Alternative Options
As detailed above, Local Authorities are required by law to have an up to date
Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy in place. Failure to refresh our
Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy would therefore constitute a
breach of this statutory requirement.

5.

Conclusion
As outlined above, we request that Full Council approves and adopts The
Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy 2022-2027, noting the
amendments resulting from consultation.

Full Council
24th May 2022

32

Teignbridge District Council Homelessness
and Rough Sleeping Strategy 2022-2027
Contents

Page

Context and Challenges
1. Introduction

2

2. The National Strategic Context

2

3. The Local Strategic Context

3

4. Homelessness in Teignbridge

5

Summary of findings from the Homelessness Review
5. Key Challenges

10

Our Core Principles
6. Working in partnership

14

7. Using data effectively

15

8. Putting the client first

16

Strategic Priorities
9. Priority 1: Prevention

17

10. Priority 2: Intervention

19

11. Priority 3: Recovery and Sustainment

20

1

33

Context and challenges
1. Introduction
The most visible form of homelessness involves people who are seen living on the
streets, but the issue of homelessness is much broader than that, including, for
example, people living in overcrowded or temporary accommodation or households
who are threatened with eviction.
Anyone can become homeless, but issues such as unemployment, poor physical and
mental health, alcohol and substance misuse, relationship breakdown, and
combinations of all these, will increase the risk of someone losing a home and of
being unable to quickly find another.
Tackling poverty is critical, particularly childhood poverty, which can have a lasting
impact on a person’s life. It is widely understood that there is a correlation between
young people’s childhood experiences and homelessness in later life – often referred
to as ‘adverse childhood experiences’ (ACEs). A Public Health England report
describes three direct experiences (verbal abuse, physical abuse and sexual abuse)
and six indirect experiences (parental separation, domestic violence, mental illness,
alcohol abuse, drug use and imprisonment) that have an impact on childhood
development. 50% of homeless people generally have four or more ACEs.
This new five-year Strategy confirms Teignbridge District Council’s commitment to
preventing and relieving homelessness and rough sleeping, and sets out how we will
work with our partners to meet our objectives.
It is an ambitious strategy, written at a time of uncertainty as to the long term impact
of the Covid-19 pandemic which may put more people at risk of homelessness. Close
collaboration with partners in responding to the crisis has, however, allowed us to
explore new and innovative solutions, and different ways of working. Our proposed
actions and approach to preventing and relieving homelessness have been
developed in this context.

2. The National Strategic Context
A range of national policies and priorities, alongside legislation, have influenced and
helped to shape the direction of the Council’s Homelessness Strategy. Ending rough
sleeping, reducing overall levels of homelessness and eliminating the use of
unsuitable emergency accommodation are national priorities. These are also linked
to other strategies and initiatives relating to reducing substance misuse, supporting
victims of domestic abuse, reducing delayed hospital discharges, supporting looked-

2

34

after children and vulnerable families, supporting care leavers and helping to
rehabilitate those within the criminal justice system.
Key pieces of legislation and national polices include:












The Criminal Justice Act 2003
The Mental Health Act 2007
The Health and Social Care Act 2012
The Care Act 2014
The Children and Families Act 2014
HM Government Care Leavers Strategy 2014
The Localism Act 2011
The Homelessness Reduction Act 2017
The Homelessness Code Of Guidance for Local Authorities 2018
The Rough Sleeping Strategy 2018
The Domestic Abuse Act 2021

Prior to the onset of the Covid-19 pandemic, national levels of homelessness, rough
sleeping and placements into temporary accommodation, including bed and
breakfast style accommodation had risen year on year over the last decade.
Thanks to temporary protective measures (especially income protection programmes
and eviction moratoria) the Covid-19 pandemic triggered no overall increase in
homeless applications nationally. Temporary accommodation placements surged
however, particularly of single homeless people, as the result of the emergency
measures to protect those at risk of rough sleeping (Everyone In) during the
pandemic.
The pandemic has also further exposed England’s severe shortage of affordable
homes. Access to long-term housing was generally seen to be the biggest capacity
challenge posed (or increased) by the pandemic on local authorities. A majority of
councils surveyed said it had become harder to place homeless households in both
social rented and private rented sector housing during the pandemic. (Crisis
homelessness monitor 2021)

3. The Local Strategic Context
Teignbridge
At a district level, the key strategic plans linked to this strategy are:
 The Teignbridge District Council Housing Strategy 2021-2026
 The Teignbridge Tenancy Strategy 2019
3

35

 The Teignbridge Council Strategy 2020-2030
 The Teignbridge Local Plan 2020-2033
 The Dartmoor National Park Local Plan 2006-2026
The Teignbridge Housing Strategy 2021-26 sets out what the Council and its partners
will be doing over the next five years to improve the housing situation for our current
and future residents, and should be read alongside this document. Our vision is
grouped into five key themes which reflect the broad range of work that we do to
meet housing need in Teignbridge. The five key themes are:
1. Building affordable homes.
2. Improving homes
3. Preventing homelessness and addressing rough sleeping
4. Putting the client first
5. Tackling climate change.
Devon
At a county-wide level, the key strategic plans linked to this strategy are:
 Happy and Healthy Communities, Devon’s Joint Health and Wellbeing
Strategy 2020-2025
 Wider Devon Sustainability and Transformation Plan 2016
 Promoting Independence in Devon, 5 Year Plan for Adult Social Care 2018
 The Children and Young People’s Plan 2019-2023
 Healthy Lives, Vibrant Communities, Housing Choices, a Joint Strategic
Approach to Supporting People to Live Independently in Devon 2020-2025
 Domestic Abuse Support in Safe Accommodation in Devon (currently at
consultation phase)
 The Devon Partnership Trust Community Mental Health Framework
(currently under development)
 Team Devon COVID-19 Economy and Business Recovery Prospectus 2020
The Devon Recovery Co-ordination Group (DRCG) was established following the first
response phase of the Covid-19 pandemic in 2020. The group brought together
representatives across Devon to work with communities and help to reset, restart
and regrow Devon. A crucial element of the RCG’s work has been to assess the
impacts of the pandemic in Devon. Some of the key findings include:

4

36

 Communities stepped up to the challenge of the pandemic, and communitybased groups have played a critical role in supporting vulnerable people and
those with additional needs.
 The impact of the pandemic has not been felt equally and has fallen
disproportionately on those groups who already suffered entrenched and
systematic inequality.
 Those who privately rent their homes are at higher risk of rent increases or
eviction, and food insecurity has also risen and most at risk are households
where someone has a disability or mental health issue, single adult
households with children and those with a low income.
 The pandemic has exacerbated existing health inequalities including those
around age, occupation, ethnicity, health status, place of residence and areas
of deprivation.
 There have been rising numbers of people seeking support for domestic
abuse, and there has been a rise in hate crime including that motivated by
sexuality and race.
We therefore face significant challenges over the coming years which are likely to be
further exacerbated should we enter a period of austerity and reduced financial
support for key public services. However, the work of the Recovery Coordination
Group, and the many other multi-agency forums established in response to the
Covid-19 pandemic, shows the value of collaborative knowledge sharing and
partnership work through which we can build successful approaches to meeting the
needs of those who require support.

4. Homelessness in Teignbridge
A full and detailed homelessness review has been conducted and can be read
alongside this strategy. Here is a summary of some of the key findings:
Overall demand for housing advice and support:
Our Housing Solutions Team is led by our Housing Solutions Lead and Senior
Casework Supervisor and includes eight full time Housing Caseworkers. We also fund
a full time Youth Homelessness Prevention Worker based at the Youth Enquiry
Service in Newton Abbot.
Our front-line officers work with people who are threatened with homelessness or
who have been made homeless at the earliest opportunity and develop Personalised
Housing Plans (PHPs) which meet the specific needs of each household. Where
possible, they try to help people remain in their existing home. When this is not
possible, for example because a landlord is selling their property, or it is not suitable

5

37

for the household to remain, they try to find people alternative housing either within
the social or private rented sector.
The graph below shows the total number of new housing advice cases each year in
Teignbridge since 2016, and illustrates a steady rise in demand for our services since
2017.

New Housing Solutions Cases
1200
1000
800
600
400
200
0
2016/17

2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

New Housing Solutions Cases

The top five reasons for people needing our help have remained consistent over the
past few years. These are:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

The ending of an assured shorthold tenancy
Family or friends no longer being able or willing to accommodate
Non-violent relationship breakdown with partner
The ending of a social rented tenancy
People needing help as a result of domestic abuse

Demand for Temporary Accommodation
The Accommodation Team is led by our Accommodation Lead and includes a team of
officers whose job it is to manage placements within temporary accommodation,
collect rent and oversee financial arrangements, and resettle people into secure and
suitable homes.
Our temporary accommodation provision is made up of:
 A supported temporary accommodation project for single homeless
households and families called Albany House. Albany House is made up of ten
rooms including six single rooms, two small family rooms and two large family
rooms.
 A Housing First Project made up of 11 self-contained one-bedroom properties
where enhanced support is provided by our Rough Sleeper Team and
contracted support provider, Sanctuary Supported Living.

6

38

 A further 28 units of leased, self-contained properties of varying sizes spread
across the district area.
 We also help to fund two accommodation projects for young people which are
managed by Young Devon.
 When no other options are available, we have to place people into bed and
breakfast accommodation, however this is not considered to be suitable
accommodation. We endeavour to not place 16- or 17-year-olds into bed and
breakfast and we cannot legally place families or expectant mothers into bed
and breakfast for any longer than six weeks.
The graph below aggregates the average number of households placed in temporary
accommodation by Teignbridge Council each year since 2016. In line with the overall
rise in demand for housing advice and support, we have seen a consistent rise in the
demand for temporary accommodation placements. As a result of the expansion of
our self-contained temporary accommodation provision, including our Housing First
project, placements into bed and breakfast-style accommodation have remained
static over the same period.

number of households in TA

Temporary Accommodation Placement Snapshot Data
2016-2021
50
40
30
20
10
0
2016/17

2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

Average number of placements on snapshot date over the 4 quarterly periods
All TA Placements

BnB

Rough Sleeping in Teignbridge
For the past five years, we have been committed to offering accommodation and
support to anyone who we confirm is rough sleeping in Teignbridge and who has a
local connection to the district. This offer is made regardless of whether we have a
statutory duty to do so under the Homelessness Reduction Act. Our Rough Sleeper
Team responds to intelligence provided by members of the public, Teignbridge
Council colleagues or partner agencies such as local policing teams, by conducting
outreach visits in order to verify the reports.

7

39

People who are found to be rough sleeping but do not have a local connection to
Teignbridge are offered reconnection to the area with which they do hold a local
connection. We provide a range of accommodation options, including our Housing
First Project which compromises 11 one-bedroomed properties. Support is provided
by our Rough Sleeper Navigator, and support workers from Sanctuary Supported
Living.
Each year in the autumn, we conduct an official rough sleeper count, undertaken
with a representative from Homeless Link, a national membership charity working
directly with people who become homeless in England. Community and voluntary
sector agency representatives and local police officers also help us to conduct the
count and the findings are reported to central Government.
Despite the overall rise in demand for homelessness services and temporary
accommodation placements over the last four years, we can be proud that we have
not seen a correlating increase in the most acute form of homelessness, rough
sleeping. The graph below shows the annual rough sleeper count figures in
Teignbridge since 2016, including the most recent figure from our official count
conducted in November 2021.

Rough Sleeper Count Figure
8
6
4
2
0
2016/17

2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

Rough Sleeper Count Figure

Maintaining relatively low rough sleeping numbers has been the product of intensive
outreach work on the part of our Rough Sleeper Team, combined with the targeting
of resources and collaborative partnership working. Together with our commitment
to provide accommodation and support to all verified rough sleepers who have a
local connection to Teignbridge, we have also:
 Provided increased staffing resource to the Rough Sleeper Team, which now
has 2.6 full time equivalent officers, through the Rough Sleeper Intervention
funding stream.
8

40

 Expanded our Housing First project to 11 one-bedroom self-contained
properties.
 Expanded our provision of leased one-bedroom transitional ‘crash pad’
accommodation which can be accessed by the Rough Sleeper Team for those
former rough sleepers who do not require the intensive level of support
provided in our Housing First Project.
 Established a Multi-Disciplinary Team, led by our Rough Sleeper Coordinator
and made up of representatives from key statutory agencies such as
Probation, The Police, Adult Social Care, and Mental Health Services, together
with community and voluntary sector representatives.
Devon Home Choice
We have two full time allocations officers who manage the social housing register of
need (Devon Home Choice) in Teignbridge. They process applications and changes of
circumstances, assign priority ‘banding’ status in line with the Devon Home Choice
Policy and act as points of contact for applicants. The team is managed by the
Housing Solutions Lead who is also responsible for conducting reviews and appeals.
Demand for social housing within Teignbridge remains high as illustrated through the
graphs below.
People with a one bedroom need consistently account for around half of all
applications on the Devon Home Choice register, however we have also seen an
increased need for larger three and four bedroom properties in recent years.

9

41

The total number of applicants on the housing register has remained fairly static over
the past four years, however there has been a reduction in total social housing
allocations in the last two years. This is in part a result of the COVID-19 pandemic,
and associated Government-led interventions which caused stasis and limited
movement within the housing market.

5. Key Challenges
National
Nationally, local authorities are experiencing significant budget pressures and
increasing challenges to meeting the high levels of demand for housing and support
services. Covid-19 has inflicted extensive damage on the economy and on public
finances, and there is concern about a potential tidal wave of ‘new’ homelessness as
many households suffer significant changes to their financial situation.
Government has increased the amount of grant funding available to address
homelessness in recent years, however funding pots have tended to be short term
and highly specified and focused overwhelmingly on rough sleeping.
Ongoing uncertainty around the impact of Brexit has also made the operating
environment for house builders and housing associations more difficult. For many,
there are major concerns around the economic certainty to secure finance, a
reduction in frictionless trade needed to source materials for housing development,
the loss of funding streams and the shortage in both skilled and unskilled labour.
Rising energy costs are also causing financial hardship for many households across
the country, and are likely to increase the number of people considered to be living
in ‘fuel poverty’ whereby a household’s income is below the poverty line, taking into
10

42

account energy costs, and its energy costs are higher than typical for its household
type.

Local
High demand and lack of affordability
There are currently around 1000 households on the council’s housing register.
Although this includes some people with low priority for housing, we know that there
are also people in housing need who are not registered. For example, those with very
complex needs – including some rough sleepers - may not be sufficiently well
engaged with services to register; others may decide not to if they feel they have no
chance of being housed – e.g., if they have been evicted from previous
accommodation or have a housing related debt.
The following issues mean that the number of people in need for suitable, affordable
housing within the district are likely to remain high, and could increase over the
coming years:
A mismatch between the profile of social housing applicants on our register and
the size and type of housing becoming available for letting:
Around half of all applicants on the housing register have a one bedroom need and
there is a corresponding shortage of one-bedroomed properties available for general
needs social housing applicants.
There is also a shortage of larger social housing properties available to let, meaning
that households with a need for properties with four or more bedrooms can spend a
long time on the register waiting to be rehoused. We will continue to work with local
Registered Providers to address this issue, and ensure as far as possible that the
available social housing stock matches the needs of people on the housing register.
Shortage of private rented homes, leading to high rents:
There is an acute shortage of private rented homes which are affordable to people
on low incomes in Teignbridge. This is compounded by a Local Housing Allowance
(the maximum amount which housing benefit, or the housing element of Universal
Credit will cover for housing costs) which is intended only to meet the lower onethird of local private rents - for which there is great competition.

11

43

The table below illustrates the mismatch between local housing allowance rates in
Teignbridge, and the average rents for private sector properties as of November
2021:
Bedroom size
One Bedroom Two Bedroom Three
Four Bedroom
Bedroom
Monthly Local
Housing
£448.76
£598.35
£728.00
£897.52
Allowance
rates for South
Devon
Average rents £538 pcm
£738
£938
£1,350
per calendar
month (pcm)
Buoyancy within the housing market as people relocate to the South-West:
The disparity between the local housing allowance rate and average private rents in
Teignbridge is a long-standing issues which has been further exacerbated by the
impacts of Covid-19. The pandemic has brought increased buoyancy to the housing
market in Devon as households have sought to relocate to the South-West from large
metropolitan areas.
The table below shows compares the average house prices nationally, in Devon and
in Teignbridge as of November 2021:
Average House Prices, November 2021:
National

Devon

Teignbridge

£264,000

£312,935

£275,991

Although house prices in Teignbridge are higher than the national average,
household wage levels are lower as illustrated in the table below:
Average weekly and annual total pay earnings 2021
National

Devon

Teignbridge

Weekly Gross

£578

£567

£533

Annual Gross

£30,056

£29,484

£27,716

Therefore, the average property for sale in Teignbridge is currently 10 times the
average annual wage level.

12

44

Poverty and Inequality
The impact of Covid-19 on jobs and incomes is likely to lead to many more people in
Teignbridge experiencing economic hardship, including some who have previously
been relatively well off. It will also exacerbate existing poverty; those who have no
credit history or savings to fall back on are likely to be particularly hard hit.
The Devon County Council Economy, Enterprise and Skills Team established an
economic vulnerability index in order to track the impacts of Covid-19. The index
uses an existing economic baseline but is combined with more real-time information
when this is available. It is helping identify areas of both need and opportunity in a
potentially rapidly changing post-Covid-19 economy.
It includes factors such as current unemployment levels, alongside respective
furlough vulnerability, age profile, sector make up (highlighting potentially vulnerable
sectors) and overall deprivation.
Most of Devon has been significantly impacted by the economic effects of COVID-19
and more broadly a slowing global, national and local economy, with patterns of
economic difficulty spread more widely across the whole County than in previous
recessions.
The impacts and future vulnerabilities identified in the Index are being felt most
significantly in Devon’s market and coastal towns, with the 10 most vulnerable areas
currently being:
1. Barnstaple Town Centre
2. Teignmouth: Town Centre and Seafront area
3. Ilfracombe – High Street, Fore Street and Quay
4. Newton Abbot: Station Road and Osborne Street area
5. Newton Abbot: Central – Union Road and Halcyon Road area
6. Ilfracombe West – Wilder Road and Torrs Park
7. Totnes Town Centre
8. Barnstaple – Forches Avenue Area
9. Honiton – Streamers Meadows and King Street
10. Ilfracombe – College Area

13

45

Three of the wards (numbers 2, 4 and 5, highlighted in red above) considered to be
most economically vulnerable are located within the Teignbridge district area.
In terms of protected characteristics, evidence from the Cabinet Office identifies that
Black and Minority Ethnic (BAME) people are more likely than non-BAME people to
experience housing issues in relation to quality of housing, cost of renting as a
proportion of income and overcrowding. LGBTQ research from Stonewall also found
that around one in five trans people had experienced homelessness at some point in
their lives. Inequalities in health and educational attainment are also factors.
A full Equality Impact Assessment for this strategy has been completed and will be
published alongside it.

Our Core Principles
6. Working in Partnership
We understand that working closely with partners is key to helping prevent and
relieve homelessness. Under the Homelessness Reduction Act’s ‘duty to refer’
mechanism, partnership working is now also a statutory requirement. The value of
working collaboratively with statutory agencies and community and voluntary groups
was highlighted through the response to the Covid-19 pandemic, and we are
committed to building on and galvanising these relationships.
Teignbridge Council has a long history of working collaboratively with a wide range of
partner agencies to develop and deliver homelessness and wider health and
wellbeing services.
We have played a key role in establishing the Devon and Cornwall Housing Options
Partnership and the Devon and Cornwall Rough Sleeping Partnership, and we helped
establish the Devon Homelessness and Health Partnership in response to the Covid19 pandemic. We also provide representation on a wide range of partnership boards
relating to the underlying causes and impacts of homelessness, the full details of
which can be found in our Homelessness Review.
New partnerships have emerged more recently in response to legislation and policy
changes such as:
 The Domestic Abuse Partnership Board which was established as a result of
the Domestic Abuse Act and;

14

46

 The Community Mental Health Framework Southern Locality team established to help develop the Community Mental Health Framework in
South Devon.
We will continue to work collaboratively but recognise there is more we can do. We
need to work more closely with community and voluntary sector groups, for
example, recognising the critical role they play in addressing homelessness locally.
To achieve this aim we will establish a Teignbridge Strategic Homelessness Forum.
The Forum will:
 Agree the Delivery Plan attached to this Strategy and set out the steps
required in achieving the vision within the lifetime of the Strategy.
 Meet regularly to review progress against the delivery plan and ensure it
remains responsive to emerging needs.
 Identify funding opportunities and develop services where there are identified
gaps in provision.
 Share relevant updates and best practice in providing homelessness services
and solutions.
 Commit to joint working and to co-deliver improved services and combined
projects providing effective responses to homelessness.
 Collaborate and agree solutions to common system blockages.
 Include representation from operational leads and commissioners of mental
health services and be strategically aligned with the new Community Mental
health Framework for Southern Devon.
 Explore the potential to include organisations within the private and social
enterprise sectors in recognition of the positive financial and social benefit
this could engender for people experiencing homelessness in Teignbridge.

7. Using data effectively
Our Covid-19 recovery work, both within Teignbridge and through our wider
representation on the Devon-wide Recovery Coordination Group, has shown that
certain areas have been disproportionately impacted by the pandemic, as illustrated
on page 14.
Consultation and partnership work with our statutory and voluntary sector
colleagues throughout the response and recovery phases of the pandemic has also
highlighted the value of holding and evaluating geographically specific indicators of
need for the services we provide.

15

47

Historically, however, we have focused on analysing past trends, rather than
predicting future demand, and we have lacked the means to effectively combine our
key data sources.
We intend to capitalise on our improved partnership arrangements so that we can
move from a position of analysing historic trends, to one where we can more
effectively predict future demand for services, and target interventions within the
areas and communities that most need our support.
To achieve this aim, we will establish a pilot scheme to combine key data sources in
order to predict demand for housing, homelessness and related support services in
Teignbridge.
Teignbridge District Council, Devon County Council and Citizens Advice Teignbridge
(CAT) will combine key Teignbridge ward level data sources relating to:
 Weighted Vulnerability Index information such as unemployment levels,
benefit claimant counts, income deprivation levels, health outcome
information, crime statistics etc. collated by Devon County Council.
 Demand for advisory services broken down by ward area and the type of
advice sought, provided by CAT.
 Demand for support services provided by Teignbridge District Council, such as
help with housing benefit claims, council tax support, and housing advice and
assistance, broken down by ward area.
These data sources will be combined into a smart dashboard which will enable us
(Teignbridge District Council), Devon County Council, and voluntary and third
sector organisations operating within the Teignbridge district area to more
accurately predict demand for services, and target communications and ward
specific preventative interventions.

8. Putting the client first
Putting the client first means developing homelessness and housing support services
which focus on the person rather than the process. We need to ensure we deliver
personalised support which helps people sustain their homes and ensures they
receive early help when they are at risk of homelessness. When people fall into crisis,
we will act swiftly to give them targeted, bespoke support to get them into
accommodation and off the streets.
The operating environment of front-line homelessness services is fast paced and can
often be reactive. We recognise that we need to do a better job of learning from
successful projects, and listening to those with a lived experience of homelessness.

16

48

We also need to ensure that we empower people to make decisions about their lives
and help people build on their strengths and assets in a way that works for them.
To achieve this aim we will:
 Work with people with lived experience of homelessness to ensure the
Strategy delivers the right outcomes; that the commissioning of projects
maximises effective interventions; and that local initiatives improve the life of
those experiencing homelessness.
 Draw on local best practice examples when developing mechanisms for
capturing the voices of lived experience of homelessness such as the codesigning of services by local organisations like Young Devon.
 Establish local networks to provide support to sustain tenancies including
furniture and home start packs, access to foodbanks, befriending and help
with integration into the local community and help with budgeting, money
management, benefits advice and claiming benefits.
 Create specific projects to help people access and maintain appropriate
training and/or employment opportunities.
 Develop peer advocacy, employment and training opportunities for people
with lived experience.
 Be proactive in understanding and responding to current homelessness causes
and risk factors by undertaking research and evaluation with households who
have engaged with homelessness services – which will inform continual
service improvement and the design of future provision.
 Procure a homelessness case management IT system that enables people to
easily update their case-file via a ‘client portal’, thus improving our digital
offer to those experiencing homelessness.

Strategic Priorities
9. Priority 1: Prevention
Although there are many reasons why a household may be homeless or threatened
with homelessness, the most common reasons recorded locally are the loss of a
private rented home and family and friends who are no longer willing, or able to
accommodate. Other reasons include relationship breakdowns, evictions from
supported housing, the end of a social tenancy and people needing to flee violence
and harassment, including domestic violence.
For many people there will be a number of reasons, and for some will require
enhanced support because they have multiple complex needs.
17

49

We try to work with people at the earliest opportunity when they are threatened
with homelessness, and take proactive steps to enable them to remain in their
existing home, provided that it is safe and suitable to do so. Where this is not
possible, for example because a landlord has decided to sell their property, we try to
assist people to find another home which meets their needs.
There are a number of services available to help people remain in their homes,
including:
 Financial and debt advice
 Targeted financial support provided to people struggling to meet their rental
liability
 Putting adaptations in people’s homes for people with disabilities
 Work undertaken with landlords and lettings agents to resolve tenancy issues
 Mediation with family and friends where relationships have broken down
 Partnership work to tackle anti-social behaviour, harassment and domestic
abuse
 Taking a trauma informed approach to supporting people with complex needs.
 Find suitable, affordable alternative accommodation for people who cannot
remain in their existing home
Homelessness prevention also means ensuring that local residents and
representatives from our partner agencies are aware of the support we can provide.
We try to ensure those who are threatened with homelessness either contact us
directly, or are referred to us by their advocates, at the earliest opportunity.
We will continue to try to prevent homelessness wherever possible, as soon as
possible.
To achieve this aim we will:
1. Continue to improve the Housing Solutions Service, to make sure that we give
residents high quality advice when they need it.
2. Continue to recognise the strong links between mental health, substance misuse
and homelessness, and work with Devon County Council and the Devon
Partnership Trust to ensure that service design supports tenancy sustainment and
homelessness prevention.
3. Improve our approach to preventing private sector evictions and to preventing
homelessness for people living with family, or friends through targeted and
proactive mediation.
4. Explore further tenancy rescue solutions for private tenants including the
potential for targeted grants and loans.

18

50

5. Improve our digital offer to service users, ensuring that our IT systems
incorporate self-service capabilities, and do not act as a barrier to people
accessing the right help at the right time.
6. Review the financial advice services available to identify any gaps, duplication, or
problems with accessing services.
7. Raise awareness in relation to homelessness and homelessness prevention
through interventions such as school visits and the promotion of local services
and support.
8. Continue to work with housing providers operating locally, through which we
have agreed common policies and approaches and help minimise the number of
social housing evictions.
9. Improve how we capture the reasons for homelessness and identify trends,
particularly in relation to cases of repeat homelessness, understating that some
people will require more support than others to sustain a tenancy in the future.
10. Improve our understanding of what impact COVID-19 might have on the risk of
homelessness, so that we can plan and respond accordingly.
11. Collect and analyse data coming from a number of sources, including from Devon
County Council and the Community and Voluntary Sector so that we can target
communications and interventions at those areas within the district that need the
most support.

10. Priority 2: Intervention
It is not always appropriate for people to remain in their existing home and
sometimes it is not possible to prevent homelessness. Intervention covers a broad
range of activities that ensure local people who are made homelessness are given
the support and help they need to access and sustain suitable accommodation.
In order to intervene effectively to relieve homelessness, we will: seek to improve
access to a range of accommodation options both temporary and permanent; act to
minimise the use of unsuitable emergency accommodation; improve access to and
the effectiveness of support services; and continue to build on our commitment to
end rough sleeping within the district through the use of targeted outreach and the
development of homelessness and health pathways.
To achieve this aim we will:
1. Continue to review the Devon Home Choice Policy and our approach to Local
Lettings Plans to ensure access to housing for people with high levels of need.
2. Review the extent to which housing related debt should remain a barrier to being
offered a home.
3. Work with housing providers to explore how we can use existing homes better.
19

51

4. Encourage and promote the take-up of private rented housing options,
considering additional incentives and improving the support available to
landlords and tenants.
5. Build a register and needs assessment of affordable, suitable private rented
properties to ensure they are allocated to households in an equitable way.
6. Investigate the feasibility of delivering more specialist forms of housing, such as
acquiring houses of multiple occupation to provide more housing options for
young people on low and middle incomes.
7. Further develop our existing plans to reduce reliance on the use of Bed and
Breakfast style emergency accommodation.
8. Look for alternative ways of providing temporary and emergency accommodation
to more effectively support people with complex needs.
9. Develop effective homelessness and accommodation pathways to ensure people
are not discharged from hospital or released from prison directly onto the streets.
10. Promote and utilise apprenticeship schemes as a route into employment.
11. Endeavour to better understand the relationship between debt and mental
health crisis, and support people impacted by debt and associated mental illness.
12. Work collaboratively with Substance Misuse Services to investigate the potential
for rapid prescribing for people experiencing street homelessness.

Priority 3: Recovery and Sustainment
We need to make sure our interventions are focused on helping people sustain safe
and suitable accommodation in the long term. Sustainment means breaking the cycle
of repeat and chronic homelessness, and enabling people to lead healthy and
productive lives.
To build a model of sustainment we will: ensure that tackling the social, economic
and health impact of homelessness is the business of all local services; adopt an
inclusion health approach aimed at improving the health outcomes of those at risk
of, or already homeless; work with local landlords and social housing providers to
support people before they reach a point of crisis; and develop pathways through
which people who have experienced homelessness can access employment and
training opportunities, building their resilience and independence.
To achieve this aim we will:
1. Review the scope and effectiveness of accommodation based and floating
support, particularly in relation to ‘move on’ advice and maintaining settled
homes.

20

52

2. Develop a model of accommodation based and floating support that meets the
housing and health needs of our local service users.
3. Continue to provide financial inclusion advice and support for those at risk of or
already homeless.
4. Work with the Department of Work and Pensions and the community and
voluntary sector to improve options for employment, education and training for
people who have experienced homelessness.
5. Promote and utilise befriending services where appropriate.
6. Improve collaboration with statutory partners at a strategic level to address the
underlying causes of homelessness.
7. Build on the work of our Rough Sleeper Multidisciplinary Team, and explore how
joint working arrangements with mental health, substance misuse and social
services can be improved including the potential of some co-location of services.
8. Continue to work in partnership with representatives from statutory agencies and
the community and voluntary sector, consolidating the brilliant partnership work
undertaken in response to the Covid-19 pandemic.
9. Ensure we provide support to landlords and social housing providers experiencing
issues with tenants so we can resolve problems before they reach crisis point.
10. Develop an ethical framework which enables us to hear and understand the
voices of people with a lived experience of homelessness, ensuring that those
experiences are embedded within and directly inform future service design.
11. Promote an approach based upon harm reduction and harm minimisation prior to
service users being fully engaged in alcohol and drug treatments.

21

53

This page is intentionally left blank

Homelessness Review 2021
Contents

Page

1. Introduction
1.1. Why conduct a homelessness review?
1.2. Definition of Homelessness
2. Homelessness in context
2.1. National context
2.2. Local context
3. Who has sought our help? Understanding the profile and needs of our clients
3.1. Total initial assessments and reasons for homelessness
3.2. Support needs of households needing housing support
3.3. Types of Support Needs
3.4. Age of main applicants
3.5. Household composition of those seeking help
3.6. Nationality and ethnicity of main applicants
3.7. Sexual identification of main applicants
4. Homelessness prevention and relief work
4.1. Reasons for the ending of prevention duties
4.2. Reasons for the ending of relief duties
4.3. Main homelessness duties
5. Temporary & Specialist Accommodation
5.1. Profile of our temporary accommodation provision
5.2. Net spend on temporary accommodation
5.3. How many people require temporary accommodation?
5.4. Household composition of people accessing temporary accommodation
5.5. Gypsy and Traveller provision
6. Rough Sleeping
6.1. Background
6.2. Rough snapshot figures
6.3. Key interventions to address rough sleeping
7. Devon Home Choice
8. Partnership Arrangements

1

55

3

4
5
7
10
11
12
12
14
15
16
17
17
18
18
20
21
21
22
23
24
24
26

2

56

1. Introduction
1.1 Why conduct a homelessness review?
Housing authorities are required by legislation (Homelessness Act 2002 and the
Homelessness Reduction Act 2017) to carry out a periodic review of homelessness in their
area. The purpose of the review is to determine the extent to which the population in the
district is homeless or at risk of becoming homeless, assess the likely extent in the future,
identify what is currently being done and by whom, and identify what resources are
available to prevent and tackle homelessness.
Local housing authorities should use this understanding of homelessness in their area to
inform their Homelessness Strategy and they are obliged by legislation to involve partners in
this process. In addition, the Homelessness Code of Guidance for local authorities sets out
some requirements for a Homelessness Strategy.
It should:






Link to the wider contributory factors of homelessness, such as health, wellbeing,
employment and economic factors.
Be consistent with other corporate strategies and objectives.
Involve partners in implementing the strategic homelessness objectives.
Have an Action Plan to show how the strategic objectives will be achieved.
Be monitored and reviewed during the life of the Strategy.

1.2 Definition of Homelessness
The main provisions for dealing with homelessness are contained in Part 7 of the Housing
Act 1996 (as amended). The Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 came into force on 3 April
2018. It made significant changes to Part 7 of the 1996 Act. Its main effect was to place
increased duties on local authorities to assess an applicant’s needs and to prevent and
relieve homelessness.
A person is threatened with homelessness if it is likely that they will become homeless
within 56 days. This includes where they have been given a valid section 21 notice in respect
of their only accommodation, and the notice is due to expire within 56 days. Where a
person is threatened with homelessness, the local authority will have a duty to take
reasonable steps to prevent them from becoming homeless.
A person is statutorily homeless if they have no accommodation available for their
occupation which they have a legal right to occupy and is reasonable for them to continue
to occupy. If the person is statutorily homeless, the local authority will have some form of
duty towards them. This ranges from advice and assistance, or providing interim
accommodation, to the relief duty or the main housing duty of securing accommodation for
a continuing period. The extent of the duty will depend on whether or not they are, or may
3

57

be, eligible for assistance, in priority need, intentionally homeless, or have a local
connection. It is important to note that there is only a duty to secure accommodation for
those who are eligible for assistance and have a priority need.
The priority need categories are set out in Part 7 of the Housing Act 1996 and these are:







Pregnant women
Households with dependent children
16 and 17 year olds
Care leavers aged 18,19 or 20
People made homeless by an emergency
People vulnerable as a result of old age, mental illness or physical disability, having
been in care, having served in the armed forces, having been in custody, having to
leave accommodation because of violence or abuse or those who are vulnerable for
some other special reason.

2. Homelessness in context
2.1 National context
A range of national policies and priorities, alongside legislation, have influenced and helped
to shape the direction of the Council’s Homelessness Strategy. Ending rough sleeping,
reducing overall levels of homelessness and the eliminating the use of unsuitable
emergency accommodation are national priorities. These are also linked to other strategies
and initiatives relating to: reducing substance misuse, supporting victims of domestic abuse,
reducing delayed hospital discharges, supporting looked after children and vulnerable
families, supporting care leavers, and helping to rehabilitate those within the criminal
justice system.
Key pieces of legislation and national polices include:












The Criminal Justice Act 2003
The Mental Health Act 2007
The Health and Social Care Act 2012
The Care Act 2014
The Children and Families Act 2014
HM Government Care Leavers Strategy 2014
The Localism Act 2011
The Homelessness Reduction Act 2017
The Homelessness Code Of Guidance for Local Authorities 2018
The Rough Sleeping Strategy 2018
The Domestic Abuse Act 2021

4

58

Prior to the onset of the Covid-19 pandemic, national levels of homelessness, rough sleeping
and placements into temporary accommodation, including bed and breakfast style
accommodation, had risen year on year over the last decade.
Thanks to temporary protective measures, particularly income protection programmes and
eviction moratoria, the Covid-19 pandemic triggered no overall increase in homeless
applications nationally. Temporary accommodation placements surged however,
particularly of single homeless people, as the result of the emergency measures to protect
those at risk of rough sleeping (Everyone In) during the pandemic.
The pandemic has also further exposed England’s severe shortage of affordable homes.
Access to long-term housing was the capacity challenge most widely seen as having been
posed by the pandemic by local authorities according to research conducted by Crisis, a
homelessness charity. A majority of councils surveyed said it had become harder to place
homeless households in both social rented and private rented sector housing during the
pandemic. (Crisis homelessness monitor 2021)

2.2 Local Context
Teignbridge
At a district level, the key strategic plans linked to this strategy are:






The Teignbridge District Council Housing Strategy 2021-2026
The Teignbridge Tenancy Strategy 2019
The Teignbridge Council Strategy 2020-2030
The Teignbridge Local Plan 2020-2033
The Dartmoor National Park Local Plan 2006-2026

The Teignbridge Housing Strategy 2021-26 sets out what the Council, and its partners will be
doing over the next five years to improve the housing situation for our current and future
residents, and should be read alongside our Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy. Our
vision is grouped into five key themes which reflect the broad range of work that we do to
meet housing need in Teignbridge. The five key themes are:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Building affordable homes.
Improving homes
Preventing homelessness and addressing rough sleeping
Putting the client first and
Tackling climate change.

Devon
At a county-wide level, the key strategic plans linked to this strategy are:

5

59










Happy and Healthy Communities, Devon’s Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 20202025
Wider Devon Sustainability and Transformation Plan 2016
Promoting Independence in Devon, 5 Year Plan for Adult Social Care 2018
The Children and Young People’s Plan 2019-2023
Healthy Lives, Vibrant Communities, Housing Choices, a Joint Strategic Approach to
Supporting People to Live Independently in Devon 2020-2025
Domestic Abuse Support in Safe Accommodation in Devon (currently at consultation
phase)
The Devon Partnership Trust Community Mental Health Framework (currently under
development)
Team Devon COVID-19 Economy and Business Recovery Prospectus 2020

The Devon Recovery Co-ordination Group (DRCG) was established following the first
response phase of the Covid-19 pandemic in 2020. The group brought together
representatives across Devon to work with communities and help to reset, restart and
regrow Devon. A crucial element of the DRCG’s work has been to assess the impacts of the
pandemic in Devon. Some of the key findings include:









Communities stepped up to the challenge of the pandemic, and community-based
groups have played a critical role in supporting vulnerable people and those with
additional needs.
The impact of the pandemic has not been felt equally and has fallen
disproportionately on those groups who already suffered entrenched and systematic
inequality.
Those who privately rent their homes are at higher risk of rent increases or eviction,
and food insecurity has also risen. Most at risk are households where someone has a
disability or mental health issue, single adult households with children and those
with a low income.
The pandemic has exacerbated existing health inequalities including those around
age, occupation, ethnicity, health status, place of residence and areas of deprivation.
There have been rising numbers of people seeking support for domestic abuse, and
there has been a rise in hate crimes including those motivated by sexuality and race.

We therefore face significant challenges over the coming years which are likely to be further
exacerbated should we enter a period of austerity and reduced financial support for key
public services. However, the work of the Recovery Coordination Group, and the many
other multi-agency forums established in response to the Covid-19 pandemic, shows the
value of collaborative knowledge sharing and partnership work through which we can build
successful approaches to meeting the needs of those who need support.

6

60

3. Who has sought our help? Understanding the profile
and needs of our clients
3.1 Total initial assessments and reasons for homelessness
The term ‘initial assessments’ refers to the assessment process undertaken by our Housing
Caseworkers when a person, or household is either homeless, or threatened with
homelessness within 56 days. It is an indicator of overall demand for housing advice and
support. When initial assessments are undertaken, a Personalised Housing Plan (PHP) is
completed with the lead applicant of the household. This is a collaboratively produced
bespoke plan which assesses the circumstances and specific needs of a household, and sets
out the steps that should be taken by both the Housing Caseworker and the lead applicant
in order to resolve their housing difficulties.
In total, initial assessments have been undertaken for 2490 households since the
implementation of the Homelessness Reduction Act in April of 2018. Of those, 2480 have
been assessed as being owed either;



A prevention duty because they were threatened with homelessness within 56 days
or;
A relief duty because they were already homeless at the time of their initial
assessment.

Demand for the service has remained fairly consistent over the past three and a half years,
although we have seen some spikes in demand, for example between January and March of
2020, and between July and September of 2020.
The Graph below shows the total number of households who have presented, or who have
been referred to our Housing Solutions Service since the enactment of the Homelessness
Reduction Act in April of 2018.

7

61

Total Initial Assessments April 2018- June 2021
300
250
200
150
100
50
0

Total Initial Assessments

Total owed a prevention or relief duty

Reasons for Homelessness
The next graph shows the reasons for homelessness for those households owed a
prevention duty between April 2020 and June 2021.
The top five reasons for homelessness were:
1. Ending of an assured short hold tenancy: 176 households
2. Friends or family no longer being willing to accommodate: 145 households
3. Ending of a social tenancy: 107 households
4. Non-violent relationship breakdown with partner: 86 households
5. Domestic abuse: 56 households

8

62

Reasons for presentation - Prevention duty April 2018-June
2021
50
40
30
20
10
0
Teignbridge Apr - Jun Teignbridge Jul - Sep Teignbridge Oct - Dec Teignbridge Jan - Mar Teignbridge Apr - Jul
2020
2020
2020
2021
2021
End of AST
End oif Non-AST Private Rented
Family or Friends no longer willing to accommodate
Non-violent relationship breakdown with partner
Domestic Abuse
Other violence or harrassment
End of social tenancy
Evicted from supported accommodation
Left institution with no accommodation available

The next graph shows the reasons for homelessness for those households owed a relief duty
between April 2020 and June 2021.

Reasons for presentation, Relief duty April 2020-June 2021
14
12
10
8
6
4
2
0
Teignbridge Apr - Jun Teignbridge Jul - Sep Teignbridge Oct - Dec Teignbridge Jan - Mar Teignbridge Apr - Jun
2020
2020
2020
2021
2021
End of AST

End of non-AST private rented

Family or friends no longer willing to accommodate

Non-violent relationship breakdown

Domestic Abuse

Other violence or harrassment

End of social rented tenancy

Evicted from supported housing

Left institution with no accommodation available

The top five reasons for homelessness were:
1. Ending of an assured short hold tenancy: 49 households
9

63

2. Friends or family no longer being willing to accommodate: 34 households
3. Non-violent relationship breakdown with partner: 21 households
4. Domestic abuse: 20 households
5. Evictions from supported housing: 11 households.

3.2 Support needs of households needing housing support
When a Personalised Housing Plan is completed, we record the specific support needs of the
household requiring housing assistance.
The majority of households for whom initial assessments have been undertaken since April
2018 have disclosed that they have one or more support needs.


1911 households have identified that they have one or more support needs



569 households over the same period have disclosed that they do not have any
identifiable support needs.

Of those households who have identified that they have support needs, a high proportion of
have multiple support needs, i.e. three or more.


912 households identified three or more support needs



416 households identified 2 support needs



583 households identified 1 support need.

Number of Support Needs April 2018- June 2021
100
90
80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10
0

1 support need

2 support needs

10

64

3 or more support needs

3.3 Types of Support Needs
A breakdown follows of the specific support needs identified by households and individuals
who have approached our service between April 2018 and June 2021. The categories
recorded are a statutory requirement, and are reported to central Government on a
quarterly basis.
The data shows that mental health issues, physical ill health and disability, being a victim of
domestic abuse and repeat homelessness are areas of high need for our clients.
1) Young People in Need of support
a) 16 or 17 year old:

82 households

b) 18-25 year old requiring support:

168 households

c) Young parent requiring support:

31 households

d) Care Leaver aged 18-20:

59 Households

e) Care leaver aged 21 and over:

75 households

11

65

2) Physical ill health and disabilities, history of mental health issues and learning
disabilities:
a) People with physical ill health and/ or a physical disability:

926 households

b) People with a history of mental health problems:

1181 households

c) People with a learning disability:

324 households

3) Drug and Alcohol Dependency
a) People with a disclosed drug dependency issue:

235 households

b) People with a disclosed alcohol dependency issue:

221 households

4) Offending history
a) People with a history of offending and criminal convictions:

416 households

5) Domestic violence and sexual abuse (DVSA) and exploitation
a) At risk of/ has experienced sexual abuse or exploitation:

178 households

b) At risk of/ has experienced domestic abuse:

503 households

c) At risk of/ has experienced abuse (non-domestic abuse)

225 households

6) Repeat homelessness and a history of rough sleeping
a) People who have a history of repeat homelessness:

380 households

b) People who have a history of rough sleeping:

289 households

7) Additional support needs:
a) Old age:

123 households

b) People who have served in the armed forces:

89 households

c) Need support with employment, education or training

125 households

3.4 Age of main applicants
The next graph tracks the age range of the main applicants for housing support between
April 2018 and June 2021. The largest age group needing housing support are 25-34 year
olds. There are also high numbers of presentations from people aged 18-24 years old, 35-44
years old and 45-55 years old.

12

66

Age of main applicants owed a prevention or relief duty April
2018-June 2021
70
60
50
40
30
20
10
0
Teignbridge Teignbridge Teignbridge Teignbridge Teignbridge Teignbridge Teignbridge Teignbridge Teignbridge
Apr - Jun
Jul - Sep
Oct - Dec Jan - Mar Apr - Jun
Jul - Sep
Oct - Dec Jan - Mar Apr - Jun
2018
2018
2018
2019
2020
2020
2020
2021
2021
16-17

18-24

25-34

35-44

45-54

55-64

65-74

75+

3.5 Household composition of those seeking help
The next graph tracks the household composition of applicants for housing support between
April 2018 and June 2021 for those people with a prevention duty owed to them.
The top three categories are: single males, single females, and single females with
dependent children.

13

67

Household composition of those with a prevention duty owed
April 2018-June 2021
100
90
80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10
0

Male single parent with dependents
Female single parent with dependents
Single Male
Single Female
Couple / two adults with dependent children Single Female
Couple / two adults without dependent children Single Female

The next graph tracks the household composition of applicants for housing support between
April 2018 and June 2021 for those people with a relief duty owed.
Again, the top three categories are: single males, single females, and single females with
dependent children. We saw a significant spike in demand from single adult males during
the early stages of the Covid-19 pandemic as people were asked to leave precarious
accommodation arrangements prior to and during the first lockdown.

14

68

Househlod composition of those with a relief duty owed Apirl
2018- June 2021
40
35
30
25
20
15
10
5
0

Single Male with dependents

Single Female with dependents

Single Male

Single Female

Other / gender not known

Couple / two adults with dependent children

Couple / two adults without dependent children

3.6 Nationality and ethnicity of main applicants
The graph below shows the nationality of the main applicants for households requiring
housing support between April 2018 and June 2021, broken down by percentages.
As illustrated in the next graph, the vast majority (97%) are UK nationals.

15

69

Nationality of Main Applicant April 2018- June 2021
120%
100%
80%
60%
40%
20%
0%
Nationality of main applicants
Uk

Ireland

A8, A2 and Croatia

Other EEA

Non EEA

The next graph shows the ethnicity of the main applicants for households requiring housing
support between April 2018 and June 2021.
The majority of applicants identify as being White British. A small minority of applicants
identify as either Black or Black British, Asian or Asian British, from another White ethnic
group or have chosen not to state their ethnicity.

Ethnicity of Main Applicant April 2018- June 2021
2500
2000
1500
1000
500
0
Ethnicity of main applicant April 2018- June 2021
White British

Not Stated

Other

White Other

Asian/ Asian Britsh

Black/ Black British

Mixed Heritage

White Irish

White Gypsy or Irish traveller

3.7 Sexual identification of main applicants
The next graph shows the sexual identification of the lead applicants for households
requiring housing support between April 2020 and June 2021.
The majority of lead applicants identify as being heterosexual/ straight, however a
significant proportion chose not to state their sexuality.

16

70

Sexual Identification of the Lead Applicant 2020-2021
300
250
200
150
100
50
0
Teignbridge Teignbridge Teignbridge Teignbridge Teignbridge
Apr - Jun Jul - Sep 2020 Oct - Dec
Jan - Mar Apr- Jun 2021
2020
2020
2021
Total owed a prevention or relief duty1,2

Heterosexual / Straight

Homosexual (Gay/Lesbian)

Other

Prefer not to say

Not known

4. Homelessness prevention and relief work

4.1 Reasons for the ending of prevention duties
A prevention duty owed to an applicant can be discharged or ended for a number of
reasons, for example because alternative accommodation has been found for a household,
or because we have taken steps to enable a household to remain in their existing home.
Between April 2018 and June 2021, prevention duties were ended for a total of 1809
households, of which, accommodation was secured for 1240 households.

The top 5 reasons for prevention duties ending were:
1. The household moved into alternative accommodation: 689
2. The household were helped to remain in their existing accommodation: 551
3. 56 days elapsed meaning that the relief duty was triggered: 247
4. The household became homeless, including intentional homelessness: 170
5. The application was withdrawn by the applicant or the applicant passed away: 70

17

71

4.2 Reasons for the ending of relief duties
A relief duty owed to an applicant can also be discharged or ended for a number of reasons,
for example because alternative accommodation has been secured for six months or more,
or because the 56 day ‘relief period’ has elapsed, after which a final assessment of statutory
homelessness is made.
Between April 2018 and June 2021, relief duties were ended for a total of 544 households.

The top 5 reasons for prevention duties ending were:
1. Accommodation was secured for 6 or more months: 247
2. 56 days elapsed triggering the end of the relief duty period: 214
3. The application was withdrawn by the applicant or the applicant passed away: 49
4. Contact was lost because the applicant disengaged: 12
5. The applicant became intentionally homeless from accommodation provided: 8

4.3 Main homelessness duties
Where a relief duty cannot be discharged, a final statutory ‘main duty’ homelessness
decision must be made. Between April 2018 and June 2021, 202 main duty decisions were
made:





84 households were found to be homeless, in priority need for assistance and
unintentionally homeless.
48 households were found to be homeless, in priority need for assistance but
intentionally homeless.
62 households were found to be homeless but with no ‘priority need’ for assistance.
8 households were found to be not homeless.

5. Temporary Accommodation
5.1 Profile of our temporary accommodation provision
The Accommodation Team is led by our Accommodation Lead and includes a team of
officers whose job it is to: manage placements within temporary accommodation, collect
rent and oversee financial arrangements, and resettle people into secure and suitable
homes.
Our temporary accommodation provision is made up of:

18

72











A supported temporary accommodation project for single homeless households and
families called Albany House. Albany House is made up of ten rooms including six
single rooms, two small family rooms and two large family rooms.
A Housing First project made up of 11 self-contained one bedroom properties where
enhanced support is provided by our Rough Sleeper Team and our contracted
support provider, Sanctuary Supported Living.
A further 28 units of leased, self-contained properties of varying sizes spread across
the district area.
We also help to fund two accommodation projects for young people which are
managed by Young Devon.
When no other options are available, we have to place people into bed and
breakfast accommodation. We do not place 16 or 17 year olds into bed and
breakfast and we cannot legally place families or expectant mothers into bed and
breakfast for any longer than six weeks.
We are currently in the process of purchasing a property to be used as an additional
supported accommodation project for homeless families and expectant mothers
comprising of five rooms of varying sizes. This will provide an alternative to bed and
breakfast placements. We are also in the process of purchasing five one bedroom
properties to house former rough sleepers under the Rough Sleeper Accommodation
Programme.

5.2 Net spend on Temporary Accommodation 2019- 2021
Between 2019- 2021, placements into temporary accommodation cost a total of
£296,997.00 to the local authority. Costs in 2020/2021 were particularly high as a result of
the increased demand for temporary accommodation brought about by the Covid-19
pandemic, and due to our need to procure additional units of self-contained
accommodation in order to provide accommodation that would enable people to selfisolate if necessary.
Net spend 2019/20: £123,375.00
Net spend 2020/21: £173,602.00
Teignbridge Council Temporary Accommodation Provision
Accommodation
Type

Bed and Breakfast

Number of units

Description

Tenure

Average
length of stay

Average of 9
households
placed on any
given date.

Spot purchased
accommodation
booked on nightly
basis.

Licence

20 days

19

73

Accommodation
Type

Number of units

Description

Tenure

Average
length of stay

Albany House

10 Rooms

Local Authority owned
homeless supported
accommodation.

Licence

52 days

6 x single
occupancy
2 x small family
rooms

Mixed occupancy
(single people and
families).

2 x large family
rooms

STAR Project

Crash Pads

11 x 1 beds

11 x 1 Beds

Housing first
Licence
accommodation project
for rough sleepers.

Self-contained
furnished properties for
use as emergency
accommodation.

320 days

152 days

7 x 2 Beds
1 x 3 Bed

(30 total)
Second Stage
Temporary
Accommodation

3 x 3 beds
4 x 2 beds
1x 1 bed

Self-contained
unfurnished properties
leased from private
landlords and
registered providers.

20

74

Non-secure
tenancy

195 Days

Accommodation
Type
Private Sector
Lease (PSL) for
temporary
accommodation

Number of units

Description

(8 Total)

21

75

Tenure

Average
length of stay

5.3 How many people require temporary accommodation?
The next graph aggregates the average number of households placed into temporary
accommodation by Teignbridge Council each year since 2016. In line with the overall rise in
demand for housing advice and support, we have seen a consist rise in the demand for
temporary accommodation placements.

number of households in TA

Temporary Accommodation Placement Snapshot Data 20162021
50
45
40
35
30
25
20
15
10
5
0
2016/17

2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

Average number of placements on snapshot date over the 4 quarterly periods
All TA Placements

BnB

On any average night the following number of households were occupying temporary
accommodation (TA) and bed and breakfast accommodation (B&B):
2016/17: 37 households in TA, of which BnB: 12 households
2017/18: 30 households in TA, of which BnB: 6 household
2018/19: 39 households in TA, of which BnB: 12 households
2019/20: 44 households in TA, of which BnB: 12 households
2020/21 46 households in TA, of which BnB: 12 households

5.4 Household composition of people accessing temporary accommodation
The following charts illustrate that, aside from the in the year 2020/21, the split between
single people and families requiring temporary accommodation has remained at a
consistent level. In 2020/21, a higher proportion of single clients required temporary
accommodation compared to families, because families were largely prevented from
becoming homeless as a result of the temporary moratorium on evictions implemented by
Government.

22

76

TA Placements by Household Type
2018/19

TA Placements by Household Type
2017/18
Single Clients

Single Clients

30%

31%
70%

69%

Households
with
dependents

TA Placements by Household Type
2019/20

TA Placements by Household Type
2020/21

Single Clients

10%

30%
70%

Households
with
dependents

Households
with
dependents

90%

Single Clients

Households
with
dependents

5.5 Gypsy and Traveller Provision
A gypsy and traveller pitch is likely to accommodate a single household and is generally a
piece of ground large enough to accommodate a static caravan, a touring caravan and an
amenity building. It will have a parking area and provide enough space to carry out domestic
activities, for example laundry, children’s play, and a sitting area.
The Teignbridge Local plan target is for 70 pitches over 20 years, which equates to 3.5
pitches every year and will be provided by either direct provision, or by assisting the G and T
community to gain planning consent for pitches on their own land. To date 48 pitches have
been delivered since the beginning of the Local Plan in 2013, the majority at Haldon Forest,
near Exeter.
Within the Local Plan there are two major strategic allocations with a requirement for
pitches to be provided by developers. Due to the collaboration between the Council and the
developers, suitable land, that would not have otherwise been forthcoming, has been
brought forward; one site now has planning consent and another with an application
pending.

23

77

Gypsy and Traveller Pitches Provided 2013-2021
60
50
40
30
20
10
0
2013/14

2014/15

2015/16

2016/17

2017/18

G&T Pitches delivered

2018/19

2019/20

2021/21

Target

From work carried out, in consultation with the Teignbridge Gypsy and Traveller Forum, it is
anticipated that future demand for pitches will remain fairly consistent and the emerging
Teignbridge Local Plan will update these figures.

6. Rough Sleeping
6.1 Background
For the past five years, we have been committed to offering accommodation and support to
anyone who we confirm is rough sleeping in Teignbridge and who has a local connection to
the district. This offer is made regardless of whether we have a statutory duty to do so
under the Homelessness Reduction Act. Our Rough Sleeper Team respond to intelligence
provided by members of the public, Teignbridge Council colleagues or partner agencies such
as local policing teams by conducting outreach visits in order to verify the reports we
receive. People who are found to be rough sleeping but do not have a local connection to
Teignbridge are offered reconnection to the area with which they do hold a local
connection.
We provide a range of accommodation options, including our Housing First Project which
compromises of 11 one bedroomed properties. Support is provided by our Rough Sleeper
Navigator, and support workers from Sanctuary Supported Living.
Each year in the autumn, we conduct an official rough sleeper count, undertaken with a
representative from Homeless Link, a national membership charity working directly with
people who become homeless in England. Community and voluntary sector agency
representatives and local police officers also help us to conduct the count, and the findings
are reported to central Government.

24

78

6.2 Rough Sleeper Snapshot Figures
Despite the overall rise in demand for homelessness services and temporary
accommodation placements over the last four years, we can be proud that we have not
seen a correlating increase in the most acute form of homelessness, rough sleeping. The
graph below shows the annual rough sleeper count figures in Teignbridge since 2016,
including the most recent figure from our official count conducted in November 2021.

Rough Sleeper Count Figure
8
7
6
5
4
3
2
1
0
2016/17

2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

Rough Sleeper Count Figure

6.3 Key interventions to address Rough Sleeping
Maintaining relatively low rough sleeping numbers has been the product of intensive
outreach work on the part of our Rough Sleeper Team, combined with the targeting of
resources and collaborative partnership working. In addition to fulfilling our commitment to
provide accommodation and support to all verified rough sleepers who have a local
connection to Teignbridge, we have also:






Provided increased staffing resource to the Rough Sleeper Team, which now has 3.5
full time equivalent officers, through the Rough Sleeper Intervention funding stream.
Expanded our Housing First project to 11 one bedroom self-contained properties.
Expanded our provision of leased one bedroom transitional ‘crash pad’
accommodation which can be accessed by the Rough Sleeper Team for those former
rough sleepers who do not require the intensive level of support provided in our
Housing First Project.
Established a Multi-Disciplinary Team, led by our Rough Sleeper Coordinator and
made up of representatives from key statutory agencies such as Probation, The
Police, Adult Social Care, and Mental Health Services, together with community and
voluntary sector representatives.

25

79

7. Devon Home Choice
The Council works in partnership with the other local authorities in Devon to deliver a
choice-based lettings scheme known as Devon Home Choice (DHC). All the registered
providers which operate in the districts, and the two unitary authorities, which work across
Devon are also involved in the scheme as partners, and representatives from each authority
and from each registered provider sit upon the DHC Management Board.
The aims of DHC, as stated in the policy document, are to provide:



Choice for people seeking housing and the ability to move within Devon
A common scheme across Devon that is transparent, easy to understand and
accessible to all.

DHC provides a common:





Application form
Housing register
Approach to assessing housing need and awarding priority
Approach to advertising available properties

The DHC scheme includes an assessment framework which contains detailed criteria against
which housing need is determined. The circumstances of all housing applicants are
considered in accordance with this framework and they are then placed into one of four
bands, according to need, in descending order of priority.
The Council is a member of the Management Board which oversees the work of the two
Officers employed to manage DHC. These Officers are employed by Exeter City Council on
behalf of the partnership.
We have two full time allocations officers who manage the social housing register of need
(Devon Home Choice) in Teignbridge. They process applications and changes of
circumstances, assign priority ‘banding’ status in line with the Devon Home Choice Policy
and act as points of contact for applicants. The team is managed by the Housing Solutions
Lead who is also responsible for conducting reviews and appeals.
Demand for social housing within Teignbridge remains high as illustrated through the graphs
below.
People with a one bedroom need consistently account for around half of all applications on
the Devon Home Choice register, however we have also seen an increased need for larger
three and four bedroom properties in recent years.

26

80

The total number of applicants on the housing register has remained fairly static over the
past four years, however there has been a reduction in total social housing allocations in the
last two years. This is in part a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, and associated
Government led interventions which caused stasis and limited movement within the
housing market.

9. Partnership Arrangements
There are a myriad of partnership which we attend that operate across Devon and the wider
peninsular area relating to housing, homelessness and wider health and wellbeing needs.
Details of some of the key partnership forums are provided below. Please note that this is
not an exhaustive list.

27

81

1. The Devon and Cornwall Housing Options Partnership (DCHOP)
The DCHOP comprises of the eight Devon district housing authorities together with Torbay
Council and Cornwall Council. Housing and Homelessness Leads from these authorities meet
on a bi-monthly monthly basis in order to: share best practice, investigate opportunities for
the pooling of resources and promote a consistent approach to homelessness service
delivery.
2. The Devon Homelessness and Health Partnership Cell
Initially established in response to the Covid-19 Pandemic, the group brings together
statutory agencies including: Housing and Homelessness leads, Substance Misuse
Commissioners, Domestic Violence Services Commissioners, Criminal Justice
representatives, Public Health Registrars, Mental Health Services Leads and the Police. The
group meets on a bi-monthly basis in order to promote best practice, develop standard
operating procedures and protocols and overcome barriers to service delivery.
3. Devon Homelessness Prevention Partnership for 16 & 17 Year olds and Care Leavers
(DHPP)
This group meets on a bi-monthly basis and includes Housing and Homelessness Leads and
commissioners of services for young people based at Devon County Council. Recent joint
working has focussed on developing a Homelessness and Social Care Care Leavers protocol,
and updating on the protocol for 16 and 17 year olds. A Care Leavers Housing Action Plan
has been developed by Children’s Services and is is monitored by DHPP group. The group
reports to the Devon County Council Joint Commissioning Group on housing/homelessness
issues for young people (16/17 year olds and care leavers up to 25 years).
DHPP group also receives reports on the Devon Youth Homeless Prevention Work provided
by Young Devon, Encompass, and several different Local Authorities.
4. The Devon Youth Homelessness Prevention Workers Forum
This provision of Devon Youth Homelessness Prevention workers (HPWS) is a service which
is jointly funded by Devon County Council and each district housing authority. The HPWs
arrange fortnightly Homeless Prevention Panels (HPPs) with supported accommodation
providers present, so local new cases can be considered for accommodation. The Devon
Youth Homeless Prevention Workers Forum meets quarterly.
5. The Devon and Cornwall Housing Options Partnership Practitioner’s Forum
The main purpose of this group is to assist DCHOP, and is attended by senior Homelessness
and Housing Options officers from across Devon and Cornwall. The group meets bi- monthly
to discuss their working arrangements, raise problems they encounter relating to service
delivery, celebrate successes and resolve cross-border issues.
28

82

6. The Refugee Resettlement Governance & Operational Groups
Refugee Resettlement arrangements in Devon are coordinated by Devon County Council’s
Communities Team who also commission the support provided to resettled families. It is the
responsibility of the district authorities to provide safe accommodation for resettlement,
and to oversee the management of the accommodation provided. Governance and
operational groups meet on a quarterly basis.
7. The Joint Commissioning Group for the Children and Families Partnership
A The Joint Commissioning Group for the Children and Families Partnership meets on a bimonthly basis bringing together representatives from a wide array of statutory agencies in
order to set commissioning intentions relating to the services provided to children, families
and young people in Devon. The group is attended by the Devon and Cornwall Housing
Options Partnership manager who represents the interests of the district housing
authorities.
8. The Devon and Cornwall Multi Agency Public Protection Arrangements (MAPPA)
operational meetings and Strategic Management Board (SMB)
These arrangements are established by the Criminal Justice Act 2003, and sections 325 to
327B provide the statutory basis for MAPPA. Local Housing Authorities have a Duty to Cooperate with MAPPA arrangements. MAPPA SMB group meetings are usually held 3 or 4
times per year and there is an expectation that all organisations with a Duty to Co-operate
are represented at SMB meetings.
Each Local authority also nominates a single point of contact (SPOC) and deputy, to attend
level 2 or 3 MAPPA meetings if invited, to provide housing advice to the meeting group.
9. The Devon Multi-agency Risk Assessment Conference Operational Meetings and Steering
Group.
This is a non-statuary group which is led by Devon and Cornwall Police and which meets on
a bi-monthly basis. The purpose of the MARAC Steering Group is to monitor and assist,
where necessary, the local MARAC meetings, monitor attendance at the Steering Group,
and generally achieve the requirements of the national Safe Lives organisation. The local
meetings are held every fortnight to review (usually) high risk cases, which need more
intense monitoring and action, due to the risk associated with the victim, from the
perpetrator. There are named single points of contact who represent their District Council
at the local MARAC meetings. Case details are sent securely a few days before the meetings,
with consideration for privacy of the victim and family.
10. The Devon Domestic Abuse Partnership Board

29

83

The Devon Domestic Abuse Partnership Board was established in response to the statutory
requirements for collaborative working under the Domestic Abuse Act, in order to support
the victims and families of victims of domestic violence and abuse. The group brings
together a wide array of agencies from the public and community sectors. Work of the
group has thus far focused on developing a Domestic Abuse Strategy for Devon and setting
out commissioning plans to support victims and families in safe accommodation.
11. The Community Mental Health Framework Southern Devon Locality Implementation
Team
A Community Mental Health Framework Southern Locality Implementation Team has
recently been established in Teignbridge in order to develop and implement services due to
be provided under the new Community Mental Health Framework. The team is led by the
Devon Partnership Trust and involves a wide array of partnership agencies, including
Housing and Antisocial Behaviour Team officers from Teignbridge District Council.
13. The Teignbridge, South Hams and West Devon Rough Sleeper Multi-Disciplinary Team
(MDT)
Led by our Rough Sleeper and MDT Coordinator, The Teignbridge, South Hams and West
Devon Rough Sleeper Multi-Disciplinary Team brings together key statutory and community
sector agencies who work with Rough Sleepers and former Rough Sleepers. The MDT
provides an opportunity to ‘case conference’ for clients with complex needs, and also
enables referrals into our Housing First Project.

30

84

Teignbridge District Council Homelessness and Rough
Sleeping Strategy 2022-2027 Consultation Report

1. Background

2

2. Methodology

2

3. Community and Voluntary Sector Engagement

2

4. Open Formal consultation

6

5. Internal Staff Feedback

18

6. Focused Interviews with Service Leads

19

7. Interviews with Service Users

20

8. Planned Amendments

22

85

1

1. Background
Consultation on our draft Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy 2022-2027 was
undertaken in December of 2021 and January and February of 2022 in order to help
Teignbridge District Council to shape our strategic aspirations in relation to tackling
homelessness and develop our plans for delivering services over the next five years.
The Council is required to consult such public or local authorities, voluntary organisations or
other persons as they consider appropriate before adopting or modifying a homelessness
strategy. This can include service users or specialist agencies that provide support to
homeless people in the district.

2. Methodology
Consultation on our draft Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy was undertaken using

the following 5 methods:


A workshop conducted with local representatives of the community and voluntary sector in
Teignbridge



An open formal consultation undertaken between 2nd December 2021 and 4th January 2022.



Feedback provided by staff working in the field of Housing and Homelessness at Teignbridge
Council



Focused interviews with the leads of key agencies including those supporting young people
and commissioners of substance misuse services.



Interviews with people with lived experience of homelessness in Teignbridge.

3. Community and Voluntary Sector Engagement
On 13th December 2021, a consultation workshop was held with service leads from
Teignbridge Council and members of the community and voluntary sector who work with
homeless clients within the district. Representatives from the following organisations were
present at the workshop:


Young Devon

86

2






Citizens Advice Teignbridge
Homemaker Southwest
Teignbridge CVS
Sanctuary Supported Living

NB Representatives from a wide range of other local community and voluntary sector
groups (14 in total) were invited to attend but were unable to. They instead agreed to
provide feedback via the open consultation.
Throughout the course of the workshop, we discussed the core principles and strategic
priorities underlying our draft Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy, and what these
would mean in practical terms for local services.

Core Principles
Working in Partnership
We said:





We are proposing to establish a strategic homelessness forum to monitor
progress against the strategy and agreed actions.
Projects will run on an 18 month life cycle through 3 delivery plans to allow for
changes in demand and emerging needs
We proposed to meet twice a year to review progress, share information and
feedback/ advice from VS, linking with best practice and overcoming blockages.
Frequency could be adjusted if necessary, and written updates could be shared
between meetings

Community and Voluntary Sector Partners said:




Partners agreed with the format in principle and confirmed interest in involvement
Noted that projects which overlap would need involvement with partners from
consultation and engagement stage.
Meetings should include a combination of developing projects and sharing of
relevant information from all parties (the previous homelessness forum was not
structured in this way and attendance tailed off)

Using Data Effectively
We said:


We are planning on creating a dashboard of homelessness data collated by
Teignbridge Council, Citizen’s Advice Teignbridge & Devon County Council broken
down by ward area to create a heat map of service need. We will use this to predict
future demands, target outreach and share with Councillors and partners.

87

3

Community and Voluntary Sector Partners said:




All agreed that this is a valuable project and that voluntary sector datasets could be
added/combined
Areas of vulnerability were identified as Dawlish, Teignmouth, Buckfastleigh and
Moretonhampstead
All agreed to review the initial project plan and provide feedback

Putting the Client First
We said:



Homelessness services tend to work reactively and engagement with feedback has
been low historically
We aim to capture the voice people with lived experience of homelessness to
develop services focussed on the person rather than the process.

Community and Voluntary Sector Partners said:




Young Devon approaches include a Mentoring system which focusses on peer support
rather than parenting, and Co-designing services with young people via schemes such
as the Wellbeing Café and Youth Council. Requests for general feedback focus on
what worked and didn’t work about the service, and how to change language/
approach.
Consensus was that time is needed to build a relationship in order to gain
engagement.

Strategic Priorities
Prevention
We said:




Financial advice services were discussed, Money Advice and Pension Service
recommissioning is underway nationally which may impact the services available to
the most vulnerable clients.
This should be discussed further with CAB and Homemaker via a focused meeting in
the New Year.

Community and Voluntary Sector Partners said:


We should add into the strategy more specific reference to Mental Health services
and the new Community Mental Health Framework.

88

4




Mediation has become more difficult due to pressure on Social Care services – harm
minimisation process – recognising that more serious intervention might be needed.
We should add into the Strategy specific reference to awareness raising, for example
outreach/ visiting schools and undertaking workshops around housing options

Intervention
We said:





Housing related debt can be a barrier to being offered a home.
Housing prices and rental rates have increased, incentives for landlords to rent to
families on benefits to be considered.
There is a mismatch between local rents in the private sector rand housing
allowances
There is a gap in accommodation options for young people

Community and Voluntary Sector Partners said:




Add into the strategy a commitment to looking at the relationship between mental
health crisis and debt.
It is important that people are aware of options that are available to them, and that
awareness raising targets the right people.
Consider using national homeless week to collaborate with partners and promote
services across Teignbridge.

Sustainment & Recovery
We said:




Demands on the service have meant that there has not been resource to look at
meaningful occupation, available budgets have not been taken up for education and
training.
Spending to save, access to education and routes into employment reduce costs
associated with homelessness and are key to recovery from a life of street
attachment.

Community and Voluntary Sector Partners said:






Showcase good news stories to attract landlords for supported move on.
Revisit Homelessness Week annually.
Promote and utilise befriending services – meaningful occupation and reducing
isolation.
Links to volunteering/charity work.
Link in with Community Mental Health framework.

89

5






Look into the “I can do that” organisation helping to get under 25’s into work.
Utilise and promote Apprenticeship schemes such as ‘Kickstart’.
Ensuring awareness of entitlements and maximising income.
Mapping of services and referral routes for professionals and users.

4. Open Formal Consultation
An open consultation was undertaken between 2nd December 2021 and 4th January 2022.
Through the consultation, a copy of the Draft Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy
and Draft Homelessness Review were made available to members of the public, who were
also asked to complete an on-line survey.

The consultation widely was promoted including via the Resident’s Newsletter, the
Members Newsletter, our staff Newsletter, and the Teignbridge Council Website. The survey
was also promoted via a local press release used by local news outlets, and the Executive
Member for Housing was interviewed in relation to the Strategy on the BBC Devon breakfast
show.

A link to the consultation was also directly emailed to key service leads and representatives
of a wide range of statutory and community and voluntary sector agencies both locally and
nationally. A link was also emailed directly to representatives of agencies representing
marginalised groups and people with protected characteristics, as defined by the Equality
Act 2010, in Teignbridge and Devon.

The results of the online survey are listed below. Also listed are the comments made by
respondents to the survey, together with officer responses to each comment.

Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy Survey Results

Total Responses: 84.

Q1. Do you agree that partnership working should be a core principle?

90

6

Yes: 98.1%
No: 1.19%

Q2: Do you agree that effective use of data should be a core principle?

Yes: 95%
No: 4.76%

Q3: Do you agree that putting the client first should be a core principle?

Yes: 97.62%
No: 2.38%

Q4: Do you agree that prevention should be a strategic priority?

Yes: 93%
No: 6.10%

Q5. Do you agree that intervention should be a strategic priority?

Yes: 97.53%
No 2.47%

Q6: Do you agree that Sustainment and Recovery should be a Strategic Priority?

Yes: 97.56%
No: 2.44%

91

7

Comments and Responses from the Homelessness and Rough Sleeping
Strategy Consultation

Comments on Key issues

Officer Response

Partnership working
My experience (currently in temporary
accommodation) is that different agencies
struggle to communicate effectively, and/or
acknowledge other agencies' recommendations
It is very important that these agencies should
be included - it's crucial that they should work
together. However, what's needed is an
overarching body whose sole objective is to
help people who are going off the rails, drawing
on the expertise and if possible detailed
information from social services etc.
Needs to be recognised that all these services
are massively underfunded and it is not the job
of the voluntary and community sector to patch
holes in statutory provision. Voluntary and
community sector can make a difference to
people's lives but cannot counteract the core
elements which contribute toward
homelessness like a lack of safe homes, low
wages and unnecessary criminalisation of
homelessness. It also needs to be recognise
that the criminal justice system seeks to
penalise and further criminalise homelessness.
As a person working within the Voluntary and
community sector I am reluctant to collaborate
with this agency because of the detrimental
effect they have on people's lives.
Care should be taken to ensure that members
of the 'partnership' belonging to the 'criminal
justice system' [however attached] are seen to
take a 'low key' approach to these meetings.
The majority of 'rough sleepers' have over the
years bad experiences with 'law enforcement'
in general [both perceived and otherwise] such
that any such contact could be seen in a bad
light and frighten the rough sleeper away from
further contact - to their detriment.

Yes, we agree that Silo working has been a
barrier to effective communication in the past
and we are committed to improving effective
communication between key agencies in order
to prevent and relieve homelessness.
As the Local Housing Authority, responsibility
for addressing and reducing levels of
homelessness lies with Teignbridge District
Council. We do however participate in a
number of key partnerships which operate at a
County-wide level.
In relation to Homelessness Services,
Government has committed in core funding by
60% over the next three financial years. The
criminalisation of homelessness under the
Vagrancy Act of 1824 will also be repealed. We
welcome this change in legislation.

Representation of the criminal justice system is
and will continue to be a key component of our
partnership work. Police and probation officers
attend our multidisciplinary team meetings and
representatives of those agencies are also
involved in the wider Devon and Cornwall
Housing Options Partnership. We recognise
that distrust of statutory services can be a
barrier to engagement amongst the rough
sleeping cohort and our Rough Sleeper
Navigators work hard to build relationships and
break down those barriers.

92

8

Partnership working should not negate
Teignbridge from increasing its own stock of
additional accommodation.
The statutory agencies are hard-pressed
already, both funds and folks. Charities have
inadequate funds and cannot add another set
of worthy recipients of their money. Why not
be partners with those who do have money?
Banks, landowners, big business. With those
who can institute changes for the individuals banks, colleges, hairdressers, clothes sales,
churches.
The partnership should also be with voluntary
groups and charities who currently support the
homeless.

Core principle should be to eliminate
homelessness. Work with whoever you need to
in order to achieve this. Why assume that
existing partners are the best choice?

Noted and agreed

Thank you and noted. We will further explore
the potential for including organisations within
the private and social enterprise sectors into
our wider homelessness partnership. We agree
that this could have a positive financial and
social impact and could benefit those
experiencing homelessness.

Agreed. The community and Voluntary Sector
will be included in our partnership work via a
Homelessness Forum which will meet on a
quarterly basis. We are also in regular contact
with key C&V sector agencies via our daily
operational work.
That is certainly our ambition through this
strategy. We will continue to ensure that we
reach out to a wide range of partners, from
both existing and emerging organisations.

It is vital that a preventative approach is taken
towards the causes of homelessness as clearly
it is better to prevent people from becoming
homeless in the first place than to react only
after someone becomes (or is about to
become) homeless.

Agreed. Prevention is a key strategic priority
within our Homelessness and Rough Sleeping
Strategy

Fundamental. Strengthens synergies and
reduces overlaps. In theory should be more
cost-effective overall.
The partnership should include a lived
experience element and take a holistic
approach to address those experiencing
multiple needs rather than just homelessness.

Agreed and noted.

I feel the lived experience on parents and
families who are facing homeless and eviction
must be heard as with the levels of private
landlords selling while property prices are high,
families are facing court evictions through no
fault of their own. There is just not enough
affordable rental properties for the level of
landlords selling. This is also escalated by
letting agents encouraging sales through
promotions to make the best of the Selling
boom.

Agreed- The lack of affordable accommodation
is a key challenge as outlined within our
strategy. We are also committed to continuing
to capture the voices and views of people with
a lived experience of homelessness in order to
shape and refine our approach and service
provision.

Use of Data

93

9

Spending resources on better data when there
is limited resources/political will to implement
the solutions that are already known to be
needed (as seems to be the current state of
affairs) is just a waste of resources.

I think data quickly becomes outdated, unless
you use already limited resources to
continuously update. Therefore it needs to be
informed by experience of service users,
potential & actual as well as staff.
Obviously. But you also very much need
'people skills'. Have a look at 'Nightmare
tenants - slum landlords' on My5. Lots of these
cases are resolved by landlords/letting agents
persuading tenants to shape up - quite a skill!
However it should be remembered that every
individual is an unique member of society and
often what fits one will not fit another [the
"One Man’s Meat is another Man’s Poison"
principal], as such whilst data is an important
indication of 'trends' the observer must ensure
they 'tread lightly' when using this data.
Only if some high degree of urgency is involved
not endless data collection for years, Just go
outside of the cosy office and trudge the streets
in night time.

If being effective means doing the right thing,
then you also need to be efficient, meaning
doing the thing right, This relates to the choice
of and management of the right data.

There is a very clear political will to address
homelessness, both locally and nationally.
Collecting and analysing data is a fundamental
requirement of homelessness services as we
are statutorily mandated to complete statistical
returns. Our aim is to reach beyond our
statutory obligations and intelligently collate
and combine data sets so that we can direct
resources towards those areas and people who
most need our support. Using data in this way
will have a positive financial impact as it will
enable us to prevent homelessness more
effectively.
Agreed and noted. We appreciate the need to
utilise real-time up to date data sets. We are
also committed to continuing to capture the
voices and views of people with a lived
experience of homelessness in order to shape
and refine our approach and service provision.
Having strong interpersonal skills is a
fundamental requirement of any front-line
officer working in the sphere of homelessness.
We also support staff to develop these skills
though person centred, person –focus training
and development.
Agreed and noted.

Agreed, however street homeless outreach
work is a core element of our service. All of our
staff have experience of this work, although it is
predominantly conducted by our Rough Sleeper
Team. Outreach is conducted in the early hours
of the morning, in all weather conditions.
Agreed and noted.

Surely statistically you need to analyse past
trends in order to predict future trends

Yes, analysis of past trends is key to informing
and developing our service provision.

But some rough sleepers and homeless people
do not appear on data as they are below the
radar or their homelessness is not officially

Agreed and noted, however we do our best to
keep up to date records of all of the rough
sleepers what we encounter through our
outreach work. It is difficult to capture data

94

10

known. They may just be on the streets or sofa
surfing.

Record "what matters to me" voiced by
homeless

Do not confuse data with information. The data
may need "interrogation" to give information
that is useful.
So long as it protects the individual

relating to ‘hidden homelessness’ such as sofa
surfing, unless individuals contact our
homelessness service, or apply for housing
through Devon Home Choice. We therefore
recognise the importance of working with our
partners to widely promote the services and
support we offer. Collating data from advisory
services such as Citizens Advice Teignbridge
also helps us to better understand the extent of
‘hidden homelessness’ within the district.
We are also committed to continuing to
capture the voices and views of people with a
lived experience of homelessness in order to
shape and refine our approach and service
provision.
Agreed and noted.

Agreed and noted.

Putting the Client First
The term 'Improving our digital offer' makes no Noted. We will ensure that we adapt the
sense, you're meant to be using plain **
language used to ensure it is more accessible.
English!! Forums are good but only if those with
homelessness experience can access them.
My experience of the housing departments
(both Teignbridge and Torridge council) is that
they are rewarded/encouraged to not help
people in need, and to find every reason not to
help people. Reading up on the official council
guidance available also suggests this to be the
case, and in some cases the guidance given (for
example regarding children) seems to
contradict guidance given to other agencies.
How much money is being used on avoiding
helping people, and avoiding implementing
long term strategies?

Sorry that you have had a negative experience
however it is not our intention to avoid helping
people. We are committed to providing
assistance and support to anyone who is
threatened with homelessness or homeless.

Absolutely, also need to improve engagement
in terms of the organisation being proactive.

Agreed.

Good to see this principle being put forward.
Forum participants need to be properly paid for
their time and the system also needs to
recognise that the statutory sector, including
the council, are often not trusted because they
are part of the state apparatus which includes
law informant. E.g. a displaced person who is
not a legal immigrant in this country would not

Thanks. We recognise that distrust of statutory
services can be a barrier to engagement
amongst the rough sleeping cohort and our
Rough Sleeper Navigators work hard to build
relationships and break down those barriers.
We also recognise that non-statutory agencies
are sometimes best placed to provide advocacy

95

11

take part in this forum because of fear of being
found out.

and support to those experiencing
homelessness.

Putting to one side the difficulties that Covid
has placed on face to face contact clients need
face to face support, guidance and assistance.

Agreed and noted. We do recognise the
importance of offering face to face support,
particularly in relation to service users who are
vulnerable and require enhanced levels of care.
Outreach work is and will continue to be a key
element of our work.

Partners will need to recognise importance of
going out into community to access clients
I assume the client is the homeless person, who
will probably have neither means nor skill to
make use of a digital offer.
Services need to take on board feedback from
the homeless/ex-homeless people in order to
ensure that services remain responsive,
proactive and learn from past mistakes.

The vast majority of those accessing
homelessness services are not street homeless
and do have access to either a laptop or
smartphone.
We are also committed to continuing to
capture the voices and views of people with a
lived experience of homelessness in order to
shape and refine our approach and service
provision.

Prevention
I feel like this could encourage councils to force
tenants to stay in accommodation that is
unsuitable (either due to health and safety, or
abuse from
family/partner/landlords/neighbours) due to
minor technicalities housing departments will
find in order to avoid helping people. For
example, domestic abuse is difficult to prove,
and excepting in extreme circumstances,
councils can avoid helping people as there is no
evidence.
The concept of 'remaining in your existing
home' is to me flawed. Before going that way
the reasons of homelessness needs to be
closely studied - is remaining in their present
home actually a reason to want to leave? A
bad experience or experiences within that
home or with neighbours could so easily lead to
a feeling of lack of ability to cope with the
present situation - a case of fight or flight?
With flight being the easy [possibly only]
avenue of escape

Under Homelessness Legislation, we are
statutorily obliged to assist people who are
occupying unsuitable accommodation and it is
not our intention to use prevention as a means
of avoiding helping people. Please also note
that under both Homelessness Legislation and
the Domestic Abuse Act, evidence is not
required in order to prove a case of domestic
abuse. The legislation recognises that it is not
always possible for victims of domestic abuse
to report incidents to the Police or other
statutory agencies.
As above- Under Homelessness Legislation, we
are statutorily obliged to assist people who are
occupying unsuitable accommodation and it is
not our intention to use prevention as a means
of avoiding helping people.
Assisting people to remain at home should only
be the focus of our homelessness officers when
it is safe and suitable to do so.

Whilst I cannot disagree that prevention should
be a priority how does Teignbridge propose to
actually deal with the chronic shortage of
affordable rented property

Increasing the supply of affordable
accommodation within the district is a
fundamental priority of our Housing Strategy.

But not to remain in their home if it is safer on
the street, or if the bailiffs are at the door now

Assisting people to remain at home should only
be the focus of our homelessness officers when

96

12

and it's outside office hours and to only
intervene when a crisis occurs because no-one
has seen the underlying cause.

A huge priority that has so many interlinking
reasons. Communication with clients can help
with prioritising these reasons

it is safe and suitable to do so. Please also note
that people can access support out of normal
office hours through our ‘out of hours service’.
This is a statutory requirement of all
homelessness services.
Agreed and noted.

Social workers must be at the heart of spotting
who is liable to become homeless. The
chances of success of this priority would be
improved by increasing their numbers, as well
as their special training for this task and their
suitably improved pay levels and promotion
prospects.

Agreed. The ‘Duty to Refer’ mechanism,
introduced through the Homelessness
Reduction Act 20187 ensures that statutory
agencies such as social services are legally
obliged to refer clients to local housing
authorities when they are homeless or
threatened with homelessness.

Prevention where possible will reduce or
eliminate demands on the service in the future.

Agreed. Thank you.

Absolutely - prevention is better than cure as
the saying goes

Agreed. Thank you.

The preponderance of those with mental health
challenges needs careful evaluation and
diagnosis. How can enough capacity for talking
therapies be developed?

Agreed. We will investigate how we can further
promote therapies through our links with
Mental Health Services under the new
Community Mental Health Framework.

Helping someone stay in their home should be
top priority

Agreed.

However one of the main problems of
homelessness is young people fed up with living
with their parents and having an obligation to
rules of the house. A lot of young people leave
home because they feel it is better and they
can live on their own. They are incorrect. The
main aim is to keep teenagers at home

We are committed to continuing to support
mediation between family members as a means
of preventing homelessness, provided that it is
safe and suitable for people to remain at home.
Mediation is a core function of our contracted
Youth Homelessness Prevention Service, Young
Devon.

Working closely with Citizens Advice in Devon
which is often an agency called on at early
stages of crisis

We work closely with Citizens Advice
Teignbridge, and also provide annual funding to
them (£52,130 pa).

If the sale of rental properties by Landlords is
the number 1 cause of homelessness then
surely there should be some sort of incentive
for these Landlords to keep their properties in
the long term rental sector and avoid a sale or
going into the holiday trade.

We will work with our Private Sector Housing
Team to investigate what incentives may
encourage landlords to continue to let their
properties at affordable rents.

97

13

Prevention is always better and saves a lot of
money and time and also helps people’s health
if they can be helped sooner rather than later

Agreed. Thank you

The Homelessness Forum is a great idea but will It is our intention to develop a SMART action
only be effective if there is a clear action plan
plan which will be attached to this strategy.
with deliverables in specific timeframes. The
whole strategy as laid out is excellent but next
to useless if there isn't a plan of deliverables
that everyone will be judged against. Where
the plan doesn't meet the need this has to be
identified so that more resources can be
identified.

Intervention
lacking a semi-permanent address and
reasonable cooking facilities prevents people
getting back on their feet/working - relying
convenience food makes it difficult to save and
uncertainty around where one is located makes
it difficult to focus on job related activities (I’ve
been signed on to 4 different job centres and
had to leave two jobs due to relocation).
Judging from the people rough sleeping, there
needs to be more things for people to do to
help themselves (other than begging and selling
big issue).

Agreed. Access to safe, suitable
accommodation is crucial to enabling people to
live healthy and productive lives and is a
fundamental human right.

Intervention needs to be moved away from law
informant agencies and toward properly
funded community organisations.

The focus of our intervention is on person
centred engagement and support. Enforcement
is the responsibility of the Police and anti-social
behaviour teams. We do however recognise
that certain circumstances require a combined
approach of enforcement and support including
offers of suitable accommodation.
Thank you, however we feel that the term
intervention embodies the principle and
priority of proactive engagement in order to
address homelessness.

Guidance and suggestion would be a better
term than direct intervention. Any form of
'seen intervention' can be seen in a bad light why do they want me to go THERE? What will
happen to me if I do? Will I be forced to do
something I don't want to do?
if this means B&B at least make sure
accommodation if fit for purpose not some
down and out doss house

Far more bricks and mortar resources need to
be provided to meet the need. In my
experience in the NHS strategies and pathways

One of our priorities is to reduce the use of bed
and breakfast placements and invest in
alternative emergency accommodation
options. We do however ensure that all bed
and breakfast accommodation is inspected and
meets regulatory standards.
Improving the availability of affordable
accommodation is a key priority of our Housing
Strategy,

98

14

can sometimes get in the way of actually
meeting needs
Robust partners are key in this - no use leaning
on a partner if their support is wafer-thin. Noone wins.

Agreed. Please see our section on partnership
working.

Sufficient purpose-built accommodation must
be created for single occupation within a
sheltered environment.

Agreed and noted.

as long as it has enough flexibility to be
workable for individuals

Agreed and noted.

Although people need to be supported to be
able to support themselves. For example,
support to get employment or access to the
right medical intervention.

Agreed. Enabling people to become and selfsufficient as far as possible, and as much as
circumstances allow, is critically important and
explored further through our key strategic
priority of ‘Sustainment’.
But you don’t need to develop better pathways, We do utilise existing pathways, however we
they already exist. You need to implement
feel that there is more work to do, for example
pathways that others have already developed,
through the development of improved
saving time and money
pathways for people experiencing
homelessness and mental health issues.
Teignbridge should licence ALL private letting
We will pass this comment on to our Private
and there should be a register of ALL landlords
Sector Housing Team.
operating within Teignbridge and the register
should be open to the public to view. Any
actions taken by TDC should be noted on the
register.
Proactive, targeted intervention can
significantly reduce the emotional and financial
costs of homeless by getting people back on
their feet as quickly as possible.

Thank you, we agree.

Would homeless persons access a mobile
phone access to urgent help when needed if
one were available?

We do provide mobile phones to people who
are rough sleeping when required as a means
of maintaining contact so that we can arrange
placements into accommodation, and facilitate
support.
Thank you.

Having worked for Shelter many years ago, can
I commend this paper? Teignbridge seem to be
doing their best in difficult National
circumstances and year-on-year cuts. I fully
support the efforts to provide single person / 1
bedroom accommodation to enable persons to
get back on their feet.

Yes. However we must always prioritise UK
Illegal immigration is the responsibility of the
citizens BEFORE illegal migrants. Illegal migrants Home Office. People without recourse to public

99

15

have made themselves stateless and their
needs must not supersede those of UK
homeless people

funds are not eligible for assistance under
Homelessness Legislation.

Consider a Housing First approach

We do use Housing First. We have a Housing
First project comprising of 12 self-contained
properties where bespoke support is provided
to tenants. Teignbridge has been using Housing
First since 2012.
Thank you. We feel that prevention and
intervention are both crucially important, as is
working in partnership.

Only as and when it is a need - focus more on
prevention. Intervention will reduce and
although it needs to be there intervention is
when you have ineffective prevention - and if
you do intervene - working i partnership may
mean a better and more bespoke intervention
rather than fuddled - end if the line - not fit for
purpose service serving intervention
Drug and dependency support and treatment
services need to be improved. There are a lot
of people with mental health issues who need
basic support to manage their finances.

There needs to be a lot more resources aimed
at helping peoples' mental health as
many/most reasons for homelessness will have
a mental health component that if not
addressed with only continue the cycle
It's important to be able to intervene but the
person being helped also needs to be listened
to and their worries taken into account, There
is not a one size fits all!!

We have invested in providing specialist drug
and alcohol recovery support to rough sleepers
and those with a recent history of rough
sleeping, however we recognise that there is
more work to do. We will continue to work
closely with drug and alcohol support services
and seek to improve pathways and support for
those experiencing mental health issues.
Agreed. Please see above.

Agreed and noted. Thank you.

Sustainment & Recovery
Having brought the persons problem out into
the open and 'housed' them must not be the
end of the situation, follow up meetings are
essential to ensure that the 'former' homeless
person is happy with the new situation or a
rapid return to the former situation could easily
occur - back to square one so to speak. A lot of
work and expense for nothing so to speak,
however this does not mean a continual series
of meetings and visits to be carried out - a
gradual phasing out initially of meetings and
finally visits need to be carried out - with the

Thank you. Agreed.

100

16

reminder that any further problems no matter
where, when or why can be dealt with
you do need to provide sufficient resources in
both funding and staff not as is now with say
social worker starting with 5 clients /day ending
up with 50 + and not coping and failing the
system

They are simple sentences, but a huge
programme to set up, to staff, to administer, to
maintain and to make resilient against the
unforeseen circumstances that hit us all - as
well as those who don't want to be helped as
they fear change or cannot be helped as they
fear exposure to their abusers.
No one should sleep on the streets

If people have mental health issues, they need
to receive ongoing support

The long term needs of vulnerable people is
sometimes overlooked. Individuals whose life is
unstructured or affected by substance
dependency may need second or third chances.
Also criminal activity should not bar people for
being offered a second chance.

Agreed. We try to ensure that staffing levels
enable manageable caseloads within every
element of the homelessness service. We will
continue to ensure that this is a priority moving
forward and use every opportunity to bring in
additional resource through grant funding
opportunities aimed at addressing levels of
homelessness.
We have the staff and programme in place to
support this approach and we will continue to
endeavour to work with those people who
initially refuse to engage. We are used to
rejection but we are nothing if not persistent!

We agree and we are committed to offering all
verified rough sleepers accommodation and
support.
Agreed, however people do not always meet
the threshold for ongoing support through
mental health services. The new Community
Mental Health Frame work should support a
more preventative approach however, and
provide community based support to those
who have not met the threshold in the past.
Agreed. Thank you.

Mental health specialists should have an
important role to play where there is a cycle of
repeated homelessness.

Agreed.

It is important that people are supported
against falling back into homelessness thereby
ensuring that resources are deployed on as
many homeless people as possible rather than
continually assisting the same people again and
again.

We agree. For us, a model of supporting
sustainment and preventing the cycle of repeat
homelessness is critically important.

Again I agree but ensure these people take up
employment to support themselves

We are committed to working closely with the
job centre in order to help people into
employment. We also have funds provided

101

17

Education and particularly financial
management of personal budgets must be in
capable hands

Very important

under the Rough Sleeper Intervention funding
stream for people who have experienced rough
sleeping for vocational training and education
attainment.
We recognise that financial management and
debt advice is crucially important. To this end
we are committed to continuing to provide
guidance and support through our contracted
money advice service.
Thank you.

Current legislation for people in private rented
property allows the landlord / agent to delay
returning some / all of the deposit. Then it is
not available to the tenant to put on a new
rental. Agents / landlords write in to contracts
clauses that make it impossible for the tenant
to receive all the deposit back, they are
required to pay (high charges) for professional
cleaning on vacating the property. Seems
unfair to require the tenant to clean the
property and then have to pay for professional
cleaning too. Even less then available for them
to put towards the deposit on the next
property.

Landlords are legally obliged to register
tenants’ deposits through one of three
recognised Tenancy Deposit Protection
Schemes. These schemes offer a dispute
resolution service which requires evidence to
be provided by tenants and landlords in the
case of a dispute. An independent assessor
then makes a final decision on whether as
deposit should be returned.

The key to successful housing placement should
be support. Currently too many homeless
persons are just put into accommodation and
left without help and support to sustain their
new home.

Agreed. Bespoke, person centred support is key
and will continue to form a key element of our
service offer to those experiencing
homelessness.

5. Internal Staff Feedback
Front-line officers and managers working for the Housing department at Teignbridge Council
were consulted on the draft Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy and Homelessness
Review in December 2021 and January of 2022. They provided the following feedback and
suggestions which will help to refine our final version of the strategy:



More explicit reference to the Teignbridge 100 development project should be
included to emphasise our efforts to bring into existence more affordable housing
for local residents.

102

18



Include more data to show the increased demand year on year for the Rough
Sleeping Service.



Include a heavier emphasis on our approach to reducing levels of rough sleeping
within the district.

6. Focused Interviews with Service Leads

As detailed above a link to the Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy consultation was
emailed directly to the leads of key statutory and community and voluntary sector agencies
who work with people experiencing homelessness. Service leads from those agencies were
given the opportunity to book a focused meeting with our Housing Needs Lead in order to
discuss the aims and objectives of our strategy in more detail. Two focused meetings were
held in January of 2021. The first was dedicated to discussing the needs of young people
experiencing homelessness, and was attended by a Lead Commissioner for Services for
Young People and by the local Service Lead for Young Devon. The second meeting was
dedicated to discussing the needs of people experiencing issues with substance misuse and
was attended by the Lead Commissioner for Substance Misuse Services, and by the Regional
Service Lead for Together Drug and Alcohol services.

Summary of the discussion around the needs of young people experiencing homelessness



It would be helpful to investigate the feasibility of a Housing 1st project for young
people and care leavers.



We know that move on from supported accommodation is an issue for young people
locally, however we need to better understand what the wider unmet needs are of
young people experiencing homelessness in terms of the provision of
accommodation.



It would be helpful to investigate the feasibility of an emergency accommodation
and assessment centre in Teignbridge.



We need closer collaboration between Social care and Housing for cases of
‘intentional homelessness’.

103

19

Summary of the discussion around the needs of people experiencing issues with substance
misuse



It would be helpful to include something along the lines of an integrated workforce
that supports people living with multiple adversity (which can include Substance
addiction, DSVA, mental health needs). The Drug Strategy and Rough Sleeping
funding should enable us to co-commission and better integrate service provision.



Please link your strategy to the new Drugs Strategy which has just been released.



Moves between units of accommodation can be disruptive for people engaged with
treatment services. It would be helpful for this to be acknowledged within the
strategy.



Housing and substance misuse services should work collaboratively to investigate
the potential for rapid prescribing for people experiencing street homelessness, and
for those people recently accommodated from a position of street homelessness.



An approach based on harm reduction and harm minimisation should be adopted
prior to services users being fully engaged in drug and alcohol treatments.

7. Interviews with Service Users
In January and February of 2022, interviews were conducted with people with a recent lived
experience of homelessness in Teignbridge. Interviewees were asked whether they were
supportive of the core principles and strategic priorities contained within our draft
Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy. Interviewees were supportive of our stated
approach. Interviewees were also invited to provide further comment in relation to our
homelessness service provision. Below is a summary of the insights provided by
respondents:

Working in Partnership:



More help needs to be centred around mental health, especially for those in
temporary accommodation. Children’s mental health is ignored, as social services
say that housing is not their responsibility.

104

20

Using data effectively


Health conditions are disregarded while people are in temporary accommodation. By
all means collect data, but use it in a proactive way.

Putting the client first



Updating anything takes forever. Weekly meetings in person should be introduced
so that grievances can be personally accounted for.



A forum to improve services for clients would be good. It would be good to feedback
to others and share experiences with people who have been through the process.

Prevention


It is important so people can keep a roof over their head and so they can focus on
living.



In some cases prevention is important, however in other cases this prolongs the
stress of facing homelessness. Children should be the priority and the effects on
them if evicted or if circumstances are unpredictable and unsettling. Living out of
suitcases, waiting to be homeless is too much for children.

Intervention



It is important as finding housing is really difficult especially when you have
additional support needs. Finding private properties is impossible if you have no
guarantor or are on benefits.



Access to housing for people on benefits needs to be addressed.

Sustainment and Recovery



It is hard to break the cycle you have been in when you are struggling with addiction
and mental health. If you are homeless you cannot focus on recovery.

Suggested improvements to housing and support services

105

21








Weekly meetings with your housing officer and support worker
Mental health checks for residents of temporary accommodation
More help with forms and emails
Explain to schools about clients’ housing situation
Somewhere to play for children in temporary accommodation
Use a human touch and attitude when working with service users.

8. Summary of planned amendments to the Homelessness and
Rough Sleeping Strategy based on consultation feedback


In relation to the establishment of a Homelessness Forum, meetings should include a
combination of developing projects and sharing of relevant information from all parties.



Developing mechanisms for capturing the voices of people with lived experience of
homelessness should draw on local best practice examples such as the co-designing of
services by Young Devon.



We will include more specific reference to mental health services and the new
Community Mental Health Framework.



We will include a commitment to looking at the relationship between mental health
crisis’ and debt.



We will include specific reference to awareness raising in relation to homelessness
and homelessness prevention, for example outreach/ visiting schools and
undertaking workshops around housing options.



We will commit to the promotion and utilisation of befriending services.



We will commit to promoting and utilising apprenticeship schemes as a route into
employment, particularly for young people.



We will further explore the potential for including organisations within the private and social
enterprise sectors into our wider homelessness partnership. We agree that this could have a
positive financial and social impact and could benefit those experiencing homelessness.

106

22



We will commit to investigating the unmet needs are of young people experiencing
homelessness in terms of the provision of accommodation.



We will commit to investigating the feasibility of an emergency accommodation and
assessment centre in Teignbridge for young people.



We will promote closer collaboration between Social care and Housing for cases of
‘intentional homelessness’.



We will commit to Housing and substance misuse services working collaboratively to
investigate the potential for rapid prescribing for people experiencing street
homelessness, and for those people recently accommodated from a position of
street homelessness.



Housing and substance misuse services should work collaboratively to investigate
the potential for rapid prescribing for people experiencing street homelessness, and
for those people recently accommodated from a position of street homelessness.



An approach based on harm reduction and harm minimisation should be adopted
prior to services users being fully engaged in drug and alcohol treatments.

107

23

This page is intentionally left blank

Equality Impact Assessment
Assessment Of: Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy
☐ Policy ☒ Strategy ☐ Function ☐ Service
☐ New
☐ Other [please state]
☐ Already exists / review ☒ Changing
Directorate: Council-Wide
Assessment carried out by: Tony
Mansour
Service Area: Council-Wide
Job Role: Housing Needs Lead
Version / Date Of Sign Off By Director:

Step 1: What do we want to do?
This assessment should be started at the beginning of the process by someone with a good knowledge of
the proposal and service area, and sufficient influence over the proposal. It is good practice to take a team
approach to completing the equality impact assessment. Please contact the Policy Officer early for advice.

1.1 What are the aims and objectives/purpose of this proposal?
Briefly explain the purpose of the proposal and why it is needed. Describe who it is aimed at and the
intended aims / outcomes. Where known also summarise the key actions you plan to undertake. Please use
plain English, avoiding jargon and acronyms. Equality Impact Assessments are viewed by a wide range of
people including decision-makers and the wider public.

It is a corporate and statutory requirement for Teignbridge District Council to have a
Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy which reviews the circumstances within the
district, identifies key challenges and sets out priorities for addressing how we will work to
prevent and reduce homelessness.
The Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy 2022-2027 and the accompanying
Homelessness Review are designed to:




Provide a comprehensive evidence base which sets out the issues relating to
homelessness within the district.
Clearly identify the priorities relating to homelessness and rough sleeping for the lifetime
of the strategy.
Sets out the approach to homelessness prevention which is fit for purpose and meets the
Requirements of the Homelessness Reduction Act.

NB: Following approval from our elected members, an action plan will be developed which sets
out clear SMART actions which enable the council to meet the priorities contained within the
strategy.
The Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy is designed to support the corporate objective
set out within the Teignbridge Council Strategy 2020-2030 and the Council’s Housing
Strategy 2021-2026.

1.2 Who will the proposal have the potential to affect?
☒ Service users

☒ The wider community

109

☒ Teignbridge workforce

1.3 Will the proposal have an equality impact?
Could the proposal affect access levels of representation or participation in a service, or does it have the
potential to change e.g. quality of life: health, education, or standard of living etc.?
If ‘No’ explain why you are sure there will be no equality impact, then skip steps 2-4 and request review by
your manager.
If ‘Yes’ complete the rest of this assessment.

☒ Yes

☐ No

[please select]

The Homelessness & Rough Sleeping Strategy have been deliberately designed to meet the
needs of and support all communities in Teignbridge. It is anticipated it will have a positive
impact for all protected groups both directly and indirectly.
In the main, the EIA has found that there are no indications that either strategy will have
negative impacts for any protected groups. Failure to deliver the strategies may, however, have
negative consequences for some protected groups and in that sense the strategies have been
designed to meet identified needs. Data has shown that there are some particular issues
associated with certain elements of our local population, and the strategies includes actions
specifically geared to ensure services are available to meet the needs of everyone, including
marginalised groups.
The Strategy is designed to support social inclusion and to help all residents to thrive. There is
potential for vulnerable people and families (both with and without protected characteristics) to
be adversely affected by public spending reductions – however, the actions contained in the
strategy are intended to minimise any negative effects.

Step 2: What information do we have?
2.1 What data or evidence is there which tells us who is, or could be affected?
Please use this section to demonstrate an understanding of who could be affected by the proposal. Include
general population data where appropriate, and information about people who will be affected with
particular reference to protected and other relevant characteristics (listed in 2.2).
Use one row for each evidence source and say which characteristic(s) it relates to. You can include a mix
of qualitative and quantitative data - from national research, local data or previous consultations and
engagement activities.
Outline whether there are any over or under representation of equality groups within your service - don't
forget to benchmark to local population where appropriate.
For workforce / management of change proposals you will need to look at the diversity of the affected
team(s) using available evidence such as the employee profile data. Identify any under/overrepresentation compared with Teignbridge’s economically active citizens for age, disability, ethnicity,
gender, religion/belief and sexual orientation.

Data / Evidence Source

Summary of what this tells us

[Include a reference where known]

LGA Research report - Basic Facts About
Teignbridge

Basic facts about your chosen area
(esd.org.uk)

110

Details the demography of the
Teignbridge District in relation to:
 Population
 Age
 Ethnicity
 Health
 Employment

LGA Research Report- Demographic Report

LGA Research Report - Demographic Report |
LG Inform (local.gov.uk)

Local Area report for Teignbridge
Local Area Report for areas in England and
Wales - Nomis (nomisweb.co.uk)

 Education
Provides further detail on population
changes in Teignbridge, and
demographic information relating to
gender and ethnicity in Teignbridge with
comparisons to the percentage figures
for the South West and all English Local
authority areas in totality.
Provides key demographic information
and further detail in relation to
household accommodation types,
employment, household composition,
education, qualifications.
Report is broken down into:
 Who we are
 How we Live
 What we do
Demographic source data sets and midyear estimates.

Office For National Statistics Census 2011
http://www.ons.gov.uk/ons/guidemethod/census/2011/census-data/index.html
The Homelessness Monitor: England 2022

Homelessness Monitor 2022 | England | Crisis
UK

A comprehensive Review of Homelessness and
Housing Needs in Teignbridge (Teignbridge
Homelessness review 2021)

The Homelessness Monitor: England 2022,
published by Crisis, is the latest report in a
longitudinal study providing
independent analysis of the
homelessness impacts of recent
economic and policy developments in
England. This tenth annual report by
Heriot-Watt University, providing an
account of how homelessness stands in
England in 2021, or as close to 2021 as
data availability allows. It also highlights
emerging trends and forecasts some of
the likely future changes, identifying the
developments likely to have the most
significant impacts on homelessness.
This review is a statutory requirement and
was produced in conjunction with the
Homelessness and Rough Sleeping
Strategy. The review was provided as an
supplement to the Homelessness and
Rough Sleeping Strategy when we
conducted our consultation exercises
(listed below).

2.2 Do you currently monitor relevant activity by the following protected
characteristics?
☒ Age
☒ Marriage and Civil Partnership
☒ Religion or Belief

☒ Disability
☒ Pregnancy/Maternity
☒ Sex

111

☒ Gender Reassignment
☒ Race
☒ Sexual Orientation

2.3 Are there any gaps in the evidence base?
Where there are gaps in the evidence, or you don’t have enough information about some equality groups,
include an equality action to find out in section 4.2 below. This doesn’t mean that you can’t complete the
assessment without the information, but you need to follow up the action and if necessary, review the
assessment later. If you are unable to fill in the gaps please state this clearly with a justification.
For workforce related proposals all relevant information on characteristics may need to be sought from HR
(e.g. pregnancy/maternity). For smaller teams diversity data may be redacted. A high proportion of not
known/not disclosed may require action to address and identify the information needed.

There are no identifiable gaps in the evidence base, however we recognise that the issue of
‘hidden homelessness’ i.e. people living in unsuitable accommodation, or with little security of
tenure is very difficult to quantify. We are committed to continuing to promote our services and
widely, and via our partner agencies and local networks, so that local residents understand
what support is available to them.

2.4 How have you involved communities and groups that could be affected?
You will nearly always need to involve and consult with internal and external stakeholders during your
assessment. The extent of the engagement will depend on the nature of the proposal or change. This
should usually include individuals and groups representing different relevant protected characteristics.
Please include details of any completed engagement and consultation and how representative this has
been of Teignbridge’s diverse communities.
Include the main findings of any engagement and consultation in Section 2.1 above.
If you are managing a workforce change process or restructure please refer to HR for advice on how to
consult and engage with employees. Relevant stakeholders for engagement about workforce changes
may include e.g. staff-led groups, trades unions as well as affected staff.

Consultation on our Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy was undertaken using the
following 5 methods:


A workshop conducted with local representatives of the community and voluntary sector
in Teignbridge



An open formal consultation undertaken between 2nd December 2021 and 4th January
2022.



Feedback provided by staff working in the field of Housing and Homelessness at
Teignbridge Council



Focused interviews with the leads of key agencies including those supporting young
people and commissioners of substance misuse services.



Interviews with people with lived experience of homelessness in Teignbridge.

NB, a detailed report on the consultation exercise, including insight, findings and amendments
resulting from consultation has been produced and will be published alongside the Strategy.

112

2.5 How will engagement with stakeholders continue?
Explain how you will continue to engage with stakeholders throughout the course of planning and delivery.
Please describe where more engagement and consultation is required and set out how you intend to
undertake it. Include any targeted work to seek the views of under-represented groups. If you do not intend
to undertake it, please set out your justification. You can ask the Consultation Officer for help in targeting
particular groups.



We are committed to a proactive approach to consultation with a diverse range of
organisations that can provide key insights into the issues facing people with protected
characteristics in Teignbridge.



The following groups have been identified as suitable for further continued consultation in
relation to the delivery of our Homelessness Strategy over the next five years.

Equality/
Operational
Strand
LGBT
Disability
Older People
Older People
Older People
Youth
Youth
Youth
Deprived
communities
Deprived
communities
Deprived
Communities
Deprived
Communities
Deprived
Communities
Deprived
Communities
Deprived
Communities
Community
Groups
G&T
Racial Equality

Organisation
Intercom Trust
Living Options
Alice Cross
Devon Senior Voice
Kingscare
SPACE, Young Devon
ROC Dawlish
Young Devon
Newton Abbot CIC Buckland et al
West Teignmouth - Meadowside
Ashburton Foodbank
Buckfastleigh Foodbank
Homelessness in Teignbridge Support (HITS)
Teignbridge Homelessness Action Today (THAT)
Homestart Teignbridge
Teignbridge CVS
Forum via Graham Davey
PDREC (Plymouth and Devon Racial Equality Council
Hikmat & Refugee Support Devon

Faith
Devon Faith & Belief Forum
Town & Parishes via Gary Powell
Residents Panel via Comms

113

Citizens Advice
Teignbridge

CAB

Step 3: Who might the proposal impact?
Analysis of impacts must be rigorous. Please demonstrate your analysis of any impacts of the proposal in this
section, referring to evidence you have gathered above and the characteristics protected by the Equality
Act 2010. Also include details of existing issues for particular groups that you are aware of and are seeking
to address or mitigate through this proposal.

3.1 Does the proposal have any potentially adverse impacts on people on the
basis of their protected or other relevant characteristics?
Consider sub-categories (different kinds of disability, ethnic background etc.) and how people with
combined characteristics (e.g. young women) might have particular needs or experience particular kinds
of disadvantage.
Where mitigations indicate a follow-on action, include this in the ‘Action Plan’ Section 4.2 below.

GENERAL COMMENTS (highlight any potential issues that might impact all or many groups)

PROTECTED CHARACTERISTICS
Age: Young People Does your analysis indicate a disproportionate impact? Yes ☐ No ☒
Potential impacts:
Mitigations:
Does your analysis indicate a disproportionate impact? Yes ☐ No ☒
Age: Older People
Potential impacts:
Mitigations:
Does your analysis indicate a disproportionate impact? Yes ☐ No ☒
Disability
Potential impacts:
Mitigations:
Does your analysis indicate a disproportionate impact? Yes ☐ No ☒
Sex
Potential impacts:
Mitigations:
Does your analysis indicate a disproportionate impact? Yes ☐ No ☒
Sexual orientation
Potential impacts:
Mitigations:
Does your analysis indicate a disproportionate impact? Yes ☐ No ☒
Pregnancy /
Maternity
Potential impacts:
Mitigations:
Does your analysis indicate a disproportionate impact? Yes ☐ No ☒
Gender
reassignment
Potential impacts:
Mitigations:
Does your analysis indicate a disproportionate impact? Yes ☐ No ☒
Race
Potential impacts:
Mitigations:
Does your analysis indicate a disproportionate impact? Yes ☐ No ☒
Religion or
Belief
Potential impacts:
114

Mitigations:
Does your analysis indicate a disproportionate impact? Yes ☐ No ☒
Marriage &
civil partnership
Potential impacts:
Mitigations:
OTHER RELEVANT CHARACTERISTICS
Does your analysis indicate a disproportionate impact? Yes ☐ No ☒
Socio-Economic
(deprivation)
Potential impacts:
Mitigations:
Other group(s) Please add additional rows below to detail the impact for other relevant groups as
appropriate e.g. Asylums and Refugees; Rural/Urban Communities, Homelessness, Digital Exclusion,
Access To Transport

Potential impacts:
Mitigations:

NA
NA

3.2 Does the proposal create any benefits for people on the basis of their
protected or other relevant characteristics?
Outline any potential benefits of the proposal and how they can be maximised. Identify how the proposal
will support our Public Sector Equality Duty to:


Eliminate unlawful discrimination for a protected group



Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic and those
who don’t



Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those who don’t

 Actions to support all age groups, and with particular actions to support both younger and
older people who may have particular needs or who may be vulnerable as a result of their age.
 Actions to ensure affordable housing provision is maximised to assist those of working age
and who are identifiably likely to struggle most to sustain themselves in the local housing market
without support.
 Actions to ensure that people with mobility needs can access support including adaptations to
enable them to remain in their homes.
 Actions to assist people who may be affected by a breakdown in their relationship with their
partner, family or friends, and including support for couples to secure homes.
 Actions to ensure suitable provision for couples (married or otherwise), households with
dependent children and those who may be pregnant.
 Specific actions to address identifiable priorities and/or gaps in provision, for example, to
support single females to prevent or relieve female rough sleeping in the borough and/or to
ensure the right provision is in place to assist those who may be fleeing the effects of domestic
abuse.
 Actions to ensure there is adequate temporary accommodation provision and capacity to
provide support for people, including where they may be affected by other forms of violence,
abuse or harassment.
 The evidence base that underpins the strategy has reviewed demographic data and compared
this with the operational delivery of services, and ensured that the strategy will continue to
achieve the right balance of support and assistance
115 including for those from BME backgrounds.

 Generic actions to improve service delivery across a range of deliverables, that seek to raise
the bar for all those who require help and support with housing or a related support need. This
will have a positive impact on all groups.
Additionally:


The Homelessness Forum will provide a platform for representatives of people with
protected characteristics to ensure that discrimination is eliminated and that their voices
are heard.



The forum will also provide a mechanism for the fostering of good relations between
people who share protected characteristics, and those who don’t.



Our Combined Data Analysis Pilot will also seek to ensure that support and key
interventions provided by Devon County Council, Teignbridge Council and the Citizens
Advice Bureau are targeted towards those areas, families and individuals that need help
through a proactive and preventative approach to service delivery.



All future projects derived from this Strategy will also be designed, promoted and
implemented in such a way as to promote quality of opportunity and equals access for
those with protected characteristics

Step 4: Impact
4.1 How has the equality impact assessment informed or changed the proposal?
What are the main conclusions of this assessment? Use this section to provide an overview of your findings.
This content should be used as a summary in reports, where this full assessment is included as an appendix.
If you have identified any significant negative impacts which cannot be mitigated, provide a justification
showing how the proposal is proportionate, necessary and appropriate despite this.

Summary of significant negative impacts and how they can be mitigated or justified:
There are no foreseeable negative impacts to our proposed Strategy. It has been designed with
our equality duties in mind, and on the basis of extensive consultation and research into the
impacts and effects of homelessness on local residents.
Summary of positive impacts / opportunities to promote the Public Sector Equality Duty:
Please see section 3.2 above which provides a comprehensive list of positive benefits and
opportunities to promote the Public Sector Equality Duty.

4.2 Action Plan
Use this section to set out any actions you have identified to improve data, mitigate issues, or maximise
opportunities etc. If an action is to meet the needs of a particular protected group please specify this.

Improvement / action required
Further pro-active consultation with key stakeholders and
groups representing people with protected characteristics on
an annual basis throughout the life-time of this strategy.

116

Responsible Officer
Housing Needs
Lead

Timescale
Annually

4.3 How will the impact of your proposal and actions be measured?
How will you know if have been successful? Once the activity has been implemented this equality impact
assessment should be periodically reviewed to make sure your changes have been effective and your
approach is still appropriate. Include the timescale for review in your action plan above.

Proposals and actions derived from this strategy will be monitored and reported on internally
through our quarterly reporting process, and externally via the Teignbridge Homelessness Forum.

Step 5: Review & Sign-Off
EIAs should only be marked as reviewed when they provide sufficient information for decision-makers on the
equalities impact of the proposal. Please seek review and feedback from management before requesting it
to be signed off. All working drafts of EIAs and final signed-off EIAs should be saved in G:\GLOBAL\EIA
Once signed-off please add the details to the ‘Central Register of all Council EIAs’ saved in the same
directory.

Reviewed by Service Manager:
Yes ☒
No ☐ Instead was reviewed by:

Strategic Leadership Team Sign-Off:

Tony Mansour
Date: 05/04/2022

Date:

117

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 11

Motion for the Ocean
Ocean and Coastal Recovery Declaration
Why is this Declaration needed now?
International and National context
The health of our ocean is inextricably linked with our climate and with human health, wellbeing and
prosperity. A healthy ocean is fundamental in regulating the global climate system and is an essential
ally in our fight against climate change. The ocean absorbs more than 90% of the excess heat in the
climate system as well as absorbing around 20% of annual carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions generated
by human activity. However, the ocean has been largely missing from climate conversations.
Decades of irresponsible marine exploitation and pollution have led to significant levels of degradation,
and this together with the detrimental impacts of our changing climate on marine ecosystems has led
to national and global recognition that the world’s oceans and their coastlines are in crisis.
An unhealthy ocean does not absorb or store carbon as effectively as a healthy one, further worsening
the impacts of the climate crisis. Marine microplastics have been found in all marine environments and
in the bodies of many species, including humans. Fish stocks have collapsed and water quality is a
significant issue in many of our coastal waters. We see increased storms and rises in the sea level.
This has the effect of accelerating the erosion of our coastline and increasing the risk of flooding along
our coast and estuaries.
The UK government’s recent Marine Strategy assessment confirms that our marine environment is not
healthy. An ocean in crisis is not only bad news for our climate, but also for our local fishing and
tourism industries and for the health, wellbeing and prosperity of our coastal communities.
2021 was the first year of the UN Decade of Ocean Science for Sustainable Development. It was the
year the UK hosted COP26 in Glasgow and the year the G7 came to Cornwall. The UK Government
has publicly declared its ambition to be a global leader in marine conservation. All eyes are on the
ocean.
Urgent action is needed to recover the health of our ocean and coasts to enable them to deliver the full
range of benefits, including capturing and storing carbon through coastal salt marshes and seagrass
beds, regulating our climate, supporting a sustainable and equitable blue economy, with equitable
access to clean, safe recreation and nature experience for happy, healthy communities. Action is
needed at all levels, from individuals developing their ocean literacy (understanding of the relationship
between people and the ocean), individual and collective marine citizenship (promoting and demanding
an ocean recovery through local, national and international policy changes).
Water quality is an issue of great concern, and is often influenced by a wide range of factors, including
land management, farming practices, road run-off, leachates from historical sources (e.g. mine tailings,
gas works and closed landfill), pollution from shipping and individual actions.
However, recent focus has been on combined sewage overflows and we note that government has
failed to hold the water companies accountable for dumping sewage into waterways. Water companies

119

discharged raw sewage into waterways 400,000 times in 2020, (including 42,000 times by South West
Water), amounting to more than 3 million hours of discharges. We note that:
1.
2.
3.
4.

The longest discharges lasted more than 8,000 hours.
Just 14% of the UK’s waterways are in a good ecological condition.
More than half of England’s rivers fail to pass cleanliness tests.
Water companies made £2.2 billion in profits in 2020.

The Government was forced into a “u-turn” on its Environment Bill early in November after at first
rejecting a proposal from the House of Lords to force firms to end the discharge of raw sewage
during heavy downpours.
After a public outcry, it put a legal duty on firms to make “progressive reduction in the adverse impact
of discharges from their storm overflows”.

Local context
In Teignbridge the ocean and coastline are a fundamental component of our economy and
environment, and the health, wellbeing and prosperity of our community. The District Council has a
role to play in leading the way in connecting people to the ocean through integrated management of
our iconic coast, shoreline and estuaries. We can also support moves towards achieving a sustainable
fishing industry. We are advocates for good marine and integrated coastal management and put these
principles into practice through hosting and leading the Teign Estuary and Coastal Partnership, the
South West Regional Coastal Monitoring Programme and supporting the Devon & Severn Inshore
Fisheries and Conservation Authority. We have recently lobbied the Marine Management Organisation
for controls on dumping of Exmouth Marina deposits in Lyme Bay and worked with IFCA to better
monitor and control shellfish stocks and removal in Teign Estuary. Marine research and maritime
culture are recognised as being at the heart of our economic recovery programme.
In 2019 we declared a climate emergency and have made significant moves to reduce both the
Council’s own carbon footprint and that of the District through close working with our community
partners Action on Climate in Teignbridge, driving our journey towards carbon neutrality in 2025. In
2020 we also declared an Ecological Emergency and have built on our existing work to encourage
ecological recovery in our District. It is important that we also recognise the roles the ocean and coast
have in contributing to our climate and ecological emergency declarations, as well as the wider
objectives of a resilient and sustainable economy, and the health and wellbeing of our residents.

Therefore, this Council declares an urgent need for Ocean Recovery.
This Council pledges to:
1

Report to Full Council within 6 months on the actions and projects that will begin an ocean
recovery in Teignbridge

2

Embed ocean recovery in all strategic decisions, budgets and approaches to decisions by the
Council (particularly in planning, regeneration, skills and economic policy), aligning with climate
and ecological emergency plans.

120

3

Ensure that the Local Plan supports ocean recovery, and the health of our coastal environments
both naturally and socio-economically.

4

Work with partners locally and nationally to deliver increased sustainability in local marine
industries and support investment in the development of a sustainable and equitable blue
economy, including the local fishing industry and the vital work of relevant partners, including
Devon & Severn IFCA, the Environment Agency and Marine Management Organisation.

5

Create an online portal of the Council website to update on ocean recovery progress, signpost
to ocean literacy development opportunities, and marine citizenship pledges.

6

Write to South West Water to request details of their urgent and revised plans to eradicate the
practice of sewage discharges to rivers and coastal waters around Teignbridge.

7

Work where possible with South West Water, the Environment Agency, Catchment and Coastal
Partnerships, developers and other agencies to combat threats to the quality of water being
discharged into the rivers and coastal waters around Teignbridge.

8

Call on government to:
a.
b.
c.

d.
e.

f.

9

Set meaningful targets and deadlines for water companies to end sewage discharges and
introduce a Sewage Tax on water companies’ profits to fund the cleanup of waterways.
Reduce the number of licences given to water companies permitting them to discharge
sewage into rivers.
Strengthen Ofwat’s powers to monitor the annual financial plans and reports of the water
companies in order to compel them to achieve a fair and transparent balance between
consumer prices, shareholder dividend, staff remuneration and ongoing long-term
investment in storm water infrastructure.
Add local environmental groups onto water companies’ boards.
Promote a public benefit company model for water companies, so that particular economic
and environmental policy objectives must be considered explicitly in the running of the
companies.
Work with local authorities to ensure water companies protect our rivers and seas by:
i.
Water companies being required to invest upfront in sewerage infrastructure to reflect
environmental objectives in Local Plans and planning applications.
ii.
Identify powers of local authorities under the statutory duty to promote wellbeing of
the area and provide councils with the funding to meet this duty.
iii.
Cease making cuts to Environment Agency funding and ensure that it has enough
staff to significantly improve its monitoring of the threats of inadequate storm-water
infrastructure and pollution from sewage and agricultural nitrates.

Further call on the Government to put the ocean into net recovery by 2030 by:
a.

b.
c.

Ensuring Inshore Fisheries and Conservation Authorities have the resources they need to
effectively research and monitor our growing number of marine protected areas, and to set
and enforce appropriate fishing levels that support local economies and deliver
environmental sustainability.
Incorporating social scientific evidence and lived experience to improve community coproduction of policy and develop more effective and equitable solutions.
Listening to marine scientific advice to update the Marine Policy Statement and produce a
national Ocean Recovery Strategy which will:

121

i.
ii.

iii.

iv.

d.

Enable the recovery of marine ecosystems rather than managing degraded or altered
habitats in their reduced state.
Consider levelling up, marine conservation, energy, industrial growth, flood and
coastal erosion risk management, climate adaptation and fisheries policy holistically
rather than as competing interests.
Develop a smarter approach to managing the health of the entire ocean that moves
beyond Marine Protected Areas and enables links to be made across sectors towards
sustainability.
Establish improved processes for understanding the benefits from ocean
management, leaving no doubt the links between this and human lives, livelihoods,
and wellbeing.

Recognising the value of, and contribute resourcing towards, multi-agency Integrated
Coastal Management Partnerships which operate at the local geographic level and are able
to respond to issues and opportunities which effect the local maritime environment and
adjacent communities.

122

